
AGENDA FOR

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Contact:: Andrea Tomlinson
Direct Line: 0161 253 5133
Date: 29 June 2018
E-mail: a.j.tomlinson@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillors : N Bayley, R Caserta, T Cummings, 
M D'Albert (Chair), M Hankey, J Harris, M James, 
N Jones, K Leach, R Skillen and S Smith

Dear Member/Colleague

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 10 July 2018

Place: Meeting Rooms A & B,  Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any matters on the agenda and, if so, to 
formally declare that interest.

3  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to 
ask questions on matters considered at the last meeting and set out in 
the minutes or on the agenda for tonight’s meeting.

4  MINUTES OF LAST MEETING  (Pages 1 - 8)

The Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held on 10 April 2018 are attached.

5  REVENUE AND HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN REPORT 
2017/2018  (Pages 9 - 30)

A report from the Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing is attached. 

6  TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT  (Pages 31 - 42)

A Report from the Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing is attached.

7  CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT 2017-18, 27/06/2018 CABINET  
(Pages 43 - 60)

A report from the Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing is attached.
Appendix A attached
Appendix A attached
Appendix B attached
Appendix C Attached

8  DEVELOPMENT OF A WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 61 - 68)

A report from the Democratic Services Officer is attached.

9  URGENT  BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



363

Minutes of: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 10 April 2018

Present: Councillor R Caserta (in the Chair)
Councillors T Cummings, M Hankey, J Harris, M James, 
Leach, J Lewis, R Skillen, S Smith and J Walker

Also in 
attendance:
Public Attendance: No members of the public were present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence:Councillor E Fitzgerald and Councillor S Wright

OSC.456 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor  Hankey declared a personal interest in Item 7, Managing Parks and 
Countryside as he is a member of the Burrs Country Park Committee.

Councillor K Leach declared a personal interest in any item relating to the NHS as 
she was employed by the NHS.

Councillor J Walker declared a personal interest in any item relating to Six Town 
Housing as he resides in a Six Town Housing property.

Councillor James declared a personal interest in Item 7, Managing Parks and 
Countryside as he is a member of Prestwich Clough Centenary Group.

OSC.457 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

Mr Rob Trueblood explained that he was the leaseholder of The Barn Countryside 
Centre located in Philips Park. Mr Trueblood referred to the City Forest Park 
project that was being developed with the Forestry Commission and City of Trees. 
The plan was to regenerate 330 hectares of green space which borders Bury, 
Bolton and Salford into a green space and culture hub.

Mr Trueblood explained that this project would include Philips Park which has 2 
listed structures within it, used to have a listed garden and was a fragile 
environment. Mr Trueblood stated that the Forestry Commission doesn’t have a 
background of dealing with historical sites and asked what type of business case 
the Forestry Commission would be expected to submit to ensure that the project 
was carried out sympathetically and ensured input from local groups and the local 
community.

Councillor Quinn explained that he had been asked to sign a memorandum of 
understanding in relation to the plans but he hadn’t been comfortable doing this 
without discussing the plans with Salford and Bolton Councils’ to find out their 
thoughts on the project.

Councillor Quinn stated that he had asked the Forestry Commission to hold 
roadshows and involve as many local groups and people in the project as possible. 
It was hoped that a Board would be established to oversee the project from Bury’s 
perspective. 

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

364

Councillor Quinn explained that it was very exciting project that would be a great 
benefit to Bury and Manchester as a whole. 

Councillor Jamie Walker reported that the Greater Manchester Scrutiny Committee 
were looking at the project as part of their work programme and he would ensure 
that Mr Trueblood’s concerns were raised at the next meeting of the Committee.

It was reported that the roadshows would be held after the local elections in May.

OSC.458 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

It was agreed:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 February 2018 be approved as correct 
records and signed by the Chair.

OSC.459 CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING OVERVIEW PROJECT GROUP - UPDATE 

Councillor Susan Southworth, Chair of the Children’s Safeguarding Overview 
Project Group attended the meeting to update the Committee on the work of the 
project group.

It was explained that the group had been established to review services available 
to Bury residents to ensure that those services were meeting the needs and 
requirements of their users and future users.

The group was made up of a number of Councillors who each had their own 
knowledge in relation to safeguarding from being ex police, teacher or school 
governors and working first had in children’s services.

During the 2017/2018 Municipal Year the focus of the group included the 
following:-

        Phoenix Team and Child Sexual Exploitation – Receive briefing on the work 
of the team across Greater Manchester with focus on the awareness raising 
work undertaken and areas of concern within the Borough.

        Healthy Young Minds and SEND update – Karen Whitehead attended the 
meeting to provide an update on the Healthy Young Minds safeguarding 
process.

       The Role of the LADO – Mark Gay, the LADO attended the meeting to share 
with members a presentation on the role and responsibility of the LADO.

       Performance Monitoring – the group continued to receive quarterly 
monitoring reports in relation to safeguarding children.

       Children with Disabilities – Examination of the support and early 
intervention provided by the team.

       Placements with Children and their Relatives – Officers attended the 
meeting to provide an update on the numbers and frequency of placements 
of looked after children with their relatives.

       Missing from Home – the group were provided with an update on the work 
being undertaken to address those children reported Missing from Home.

Document Pack Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

365

It was explained that the group had met on four occasions, interviewed 14 
different Council Officers  and had planned to visit the Multi Agency hub as part of 
its ongoing work.

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee were given the opportunity to 
make comments and ask questions and the following points were raised.

        Councillor Caserta referred to the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which had been held on 6 February 2018 where Karen Dolton 
had attended. He explained that the Committee had been given the 
answers to the questions that had been raised in the Newsam Report but 
the actual questions were not available due to the report being redacted. 
Councillor Caserta had asked if he could have a copy of the questions but 
these had not been provided.

Councillor Southworth explained that the Overview Project Group were due to 
have their next meeting later in the month and she would raise this issue there. 

        Councillor Harris referred to the conclusions set out at point 5 of the report 
and asked whether Councillor Southworth was satisfied that procedures are 
in place.

Councillor Southworth explained that the members of the group had been 
interviewed as part of the Ofsted review and it had been recognised that clear 
political scrutiny was evident and that there were strong sufficient checks and 
balances in the governance system holding the leadership of children’s services to 
account, providing coherent political and strategic oversight.

       Councillor Smith referred to the reference made to attendance at the 
meetings and asked if this had improved.

Councillor Southworth reported that attendance hadn’t been as high as it should 
have been over the year. There had been two new Members appointed to the 
group so this would improve. The group meets four times per year and the 
meetings commence at 5pm and last for two hours.

       Councillor Caserta referred to 4.1 of the report and the statement that 
referrals to the phoenix team had reduced over the summer. Councillor 
Caserta explained that he had been shocked to read the report in the 
Manchester Evening News relating to arrests made following an 
investigation into CSE in two of Bury’s parks over the summer.

Councillor Caserta asked why the information provided to the group by the 
Phoenix Team had not included reference to the investigation reported in 
the M.E.N.

Councillor Southworth referred to the work of the group and the fact that 
Councillor Caserta was a member of the group and asked if the questions of the 
group needed to be more incisive. She stated that the group were meeting soon 
and would have the opportunity to ask questions around the investigation.

Document Pack Page 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

366

Councillor Walker explained that the political groups had been briefed on the 
situation at their group meetings. He also suggested that as it was an ongoing 
investigation they the details should not be discussed.

Councillor Harris suggested that the situation should definitely be pursued further 
by the Overview Project Group at their next meeting.

It was agreed:

1.         That the work of the Overview Project Group be carried over into the new 
Municipal Year.

2.         That the Membership of the Group be included within the Annual 
Appointments report of the Council as an ongoing Committee.

3.         That regular updates be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on the work of the Group.

4.         That the Group, in consultation with the Assistant Director of Learning and 
Culture examine the feasibility of establishing a Borough wide “Closing the 
Gap” Group in respect of Educational Achievement (carried forward from last 
year). 

OSC.460 MANAGING PARKS AND COUNTRYSIDE 

Councillor Quinn, Cabinet Member for Environment presented a report giving an 
overview of how Parks and Countryside are being managed as well as future plans 
in moving the section forward positively.

It was explained that the Parks and Countryside service has responsibility for the 
health and safety, management and development of all the Council’s parks and 
countryside areas. The service manages land and buildings assets and facilitates 
the Asset Transfer Strategy, developing partnerships with local clubs and 
organisations to promote self management of sports pitches, bowling greens and 
allotments.

The services also encourages and facilitates local communities and organisations 
to be actively involved in parks and the countryside through volunteering and 
friends of the parks groups. The service looks to find innovative ways to involve 
local businesses and individuals through sponsorship and marketing, including 
North West and Britain in Bloom and the Green Flag Award. 

The report contained information relating to  how the team carried out work in the 
following areas; health and safety; maintenance;  individual service elements; 
asset transfer strategy;  community involvement;  invasive weed control; and 
Chalara Fraxinea (Ash die back) management. 

The report also set out work that was being carried out in relation to future 
projects including; 1000 acre woodland and the Burrs strategy and Burrs Activity 
Centre.

Those present were given the opportunity to ask questions and make comments 
and the following points were raised:-

Document Pack Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

367

       Councillor Hankey referred to invasive weeds such as giant hogweed and 
pests affecting trees and asked whether the problem was due to climate the 
global community or both.

Councillor Quinn explained that the issues were due to both factors. One area that 
needed work was more vigorous control in relation to importing.

       Councillor Hankey referred to Ash die back and asked what was being done 
about this issue.

Councillor Quinn explained that Ash die back did not kill the tree but affected its 
immune system so that it would die at some point in the future. The plan to 
ensure that other trees were planted to make sure that when the time came for 
the Ash trees to be removed, replacements had already been planted and were 
established.

       Councillor James referred to the level of staffing within the team and asked 
for a breakdown.

Neil Long explained that the management figures were set out in the report. There 
were also a team of gardeners which numbers changed seasonally. There were 
also volunteer gardeners and the volunteer rangers.

       Councillor Harris referred to the information provided relating to farmers 
carrying out grass cutting on some sites and asked whether more of this 
could be pursued.

It was explained that for this to happen the sites have to meet a number of 
criteria such as type and length of grass as well as the size of the site.

Neil explained that there was a lot of work carried out with regard to sponsorship 
of flowerbeds and signage from local garden centres and businesses which 
amounted to around £40,000.

       Councillor Smith referred to Japanese Knotweed and asked how the 
treatment of this could be ensured on privately owned land.

It was explained that there was a lot of work being carried out in relation to the 
treatment of both Japanese Knotweed and Giant Hogweed. It was anticipated that 
a cross borough team would be established to work jointly on this issue.

       Councillor Caserta referred to the reduction in budget that the teams had to 
work with and asked if Section 106 monies could be used for any of the 
work required.

Neil Long explained that Section 106 money is allocated at the point of planning 
application and stipulates the work that will be done.  Section 106 money is 
mainly used to sustain safe play areas. The allocated of the money is monitored to  
Ensure that it has been used as was set out in the application.

       Councillor Walker asked whether the document setting out the City Forest 
Park plan could be shared with all Councillors.

Document Pack Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

368

Councillor Quinn stated that he would ask that the Committee receive a 
presentation from the Forestry Commission in relation to the City Forest Park 
regeneration. 
It was agreed:

That Councillor Quinn and Neil Long be thanked for the update.

OSC.461 AIR QUALITY UPDATE 

Councillor Quinn, Cabinet Member for Environment and Lorraine Chamberlin 
presented a report providing Members with an update on the work being carried 
out in relation the air quality across the borough.

It was explained that DEFRA had released their “UK plan for tackling roadside 
nitrogen dioxide concentrations” which aim to reduce concentrations of nitrogen 
dioxide (N02) to achieve statutory targets in the whole of the UK within the 
shortest time possible. The Government set a clear view that action should be led 
at a local level.

DEFRA had identified a list of 29 local Councils that are predicted to have the 
greatest problems meeting air quality targets for N02 beyond the next 3 - 4 years. 
The list includes Bury with the area identified as having problems meeting the 
targets being Bury Bridge. 

The identified Councils are required to produce an innovative local plan to meet 
nitrogen dioxide targets in the shortest time possible. This will mean identifying 
interventions which will persuade drivers of polluting vehicles to transfer to public 
transport; travel along alternative routes; or transfer to a less polluting vehicle. 
The initial version of the plan must be submitted for approval by March 2018 and 
a final version by December 2018.

A Clean Air Fund of £225m has been made available by the Government to enable 
Councils to carry out feasibility studies to consider options and implement the 
identified measures.

It was reported that TfGM take the lead on air pollution across Greater Manchester 
and will be leading on the production of the local plan. The final plan will be called 
the GM Clean Air Plan and will be produced in the form of a robust business case 
that will be developed in 3 stages:-

 Strategic Outline Case
 Outline Business Case
 Full Business Case

The Strategic Outline Case had been submitted to DEFRA on 7 March.

It was reported that alongside the development of the GM Clean Air Plan, the 
Council will also be consulting on Bury’s own Climate Change and Low Emissions 
Plan which will describe how the Council proposes to address climate change and 
improve air quality over the next 5 years. The actions within the document will 
complement and enhance the GM Clean Air Plan.

Document Pack Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

369

A Clean Air Day event was planned to be held on 21 June 2018 and will include a 
showcase for electric vehicles and electric bikes. This will be held in Bury Town 
Centre.

Those present were given the opportunity to ask questions and make comments 
and the following points were raised:-

 Councillor Harris asked where the Council were up to with the local plan.

It was explained that the local plan would be presented to Council soon and the 
GM plan was at the stage of choosing a preferred method for Bury.

Councillor Quinn explained that options were being considered for retrofitting 
buses with Euro 6 engines which would reduce the amount of emissions.

 Councillor Harris asked when the plan was due to be implemented.

It was reported that the deadline was 29 March 2019. There was lots of work 
being done currently including works to the Metrolink network and work in relation 
to the regulation of buses across GM.

Councillor Quinn explained that there had been a big increase in traffic across the 
borough since 2013. It was essential that good, affordable public transport was in 
place to encourage people to use it.

 Councillor Walker referred to the use of electric vehicles and stated that all 
new build properties should be fitted with an electric charging point and 
solar panels to promote this.

It was agreed:

1. That the contents of the report be noted.

2. That an update on the progress made be brought to a future meeting of the 
Committee.

OSC.462 COUNCIL RUN CAR PARKS 

Councillor Quinn and David Fowler presented a briefing note giving information in 
relation to the Council owned pay and display car parks across Bury Town Centre.

It was reported that there were 12 car parks across Bury Town Centre all of which 
were currently pay and display. The total number of spaces available across the 
sites was reported as being 1544.

Privately owned and run car parks across the town centre had 3434 spaces 
available.

The Council runs both short stay and long stay car parks and provides contract 
parking and parking for staff permit holders.

Document Pack Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 April 2018

370

Most of the car parks were full all week apart from Tuesdays and Thursdays with 
the exception of Manchester Road Car park which remained full on these days.

There had been no tariff increases for approximately 5 years. If and when tariff 
increases are being considered checks are made with other town centre 
competitor, neighbouring boroughs and the possibility 

The total income for Council owned car parks for 2017 was reported as being 
£1,138,143.

It was also reported that that the annual income generated from PCNs issued on 
car parks was approximately £150,000.

It was explained that the Council were currently considering different pricing 
options for different (non-market) days and a pay on exit option for some of the 
car parks but this may lead to queues.

 Councillor Hankey asked whether the pay and display machines that were 
currently in use were sophisticated enough to allow for different tariffs on 
different days.

David Fowler stated that all options needed to be considered as the Council 
needed to provide the best service possible whilst raising money. The money 
raised from car parking charges went back into the highways. If the machines 
required updating in order to provide the service then this would be done.

 Councillor Harris referred to the need to attract businesses to Bury and 
asked whether parking charges were a factor that they considered.

David explained that he wasn’t aware of ant businesses being put off by parking 
charges.

 Councillor Smith referred to the charges for parking on privately owned car 
parks and asked that the Council keep monitoring this to ensure that the 
prices were competitive.

 Councillor Walker referred to the Council promoting less use of cars and 
more use of public transport and how this factored into car parking.

David Fowler explained that there were up to thirty, fifty seater coaches bringing 
visitors to Bury Market every Wednesday and Friday as well as the tram and bus 
station.

It was agreed:

That Councillor Quinn and David Fowler be thanked for the update.

COUNCILLOR R CASERTA
Chair 

(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 9.20 pm)

Document Pack Page 8



MEETING: CABINET
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 27 JUNE 2018
10 JULY 2018

SUBJECT: REVENUE AND HRA OUTTURN 2017/18

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND HOUSING 

CONTACT OFFICER: STEVE KENYON, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
RESOURCES & REGULATION

ANDREW BALDWIN, HEAD OF FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT

TYPE OF DECISION: CABINET (KEY DECISION)

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain 

SUMMARY: PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 

This report provides Members with details of: 

 the revenue outturn figures in respect of the last 
financial year (2017/2018);

 major variances between the revised estimate and the 
outturn;

 the level of school balances;
 HRA outturn for the year;
 The minimum level of balances in the light of risk 

assessments.

The figures in the report are consistent with the figures 
included within the Statement of Accounts which were 
approved by the Responsible Finance Officer on 31 May 
and will be presented to Audit Committee on 17 July, 
2018. The figures in this report are presented in a format 
consistent with the Revenue Budget approved by Council 
on 22 February 2017.

OPTIONS & Members are asked to:

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 9 Agenda Item 5



RECOMMENDED OPTION a) Note the final outturn for 2017/18, and explanations 
for major variances (Appendix A, B and C);

b) Endorse the recommendations of the Interim 
Executive Director of Resources & Regulation for the 
minimum level of balances in light of the review of the 
corporate risk assessments and departmental risk 
assessments (Section 4).

Recommended Option:

It is recommended that; 

a) The final revenue outturn and HRA outturn for 
2017/18 be noted along with explanations for 
major variances; 

b) The level of the General Fund balances be noted;
c) The minimum level of the General Fund balance  

calculated at £4.250m for 2018/19 is subject to 
regular review as part of the budget monitoring 
process.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations (statement by 
s151 officer):

Revenue expenditure has been incurred in 
accordance with the agreed Revenue Budget.  

Statement by Interim Executive 
Director of Resources & 
Regulation:

There are no wider resource implications.

Equality/Diversity implications: No (see paragraph 8.1, page 9).

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes. The presentation of an annual report on 
the Revenue and HRA Outturn is a 
requirement of the Council’s Financial 
Regulations, as part of Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules.  The report accords with the 
Council’s Policy and Budget Framework and 
has been prepared in accordance with all 
Statutory Guidance and Codes of Practice.

Are there any legal implications? No

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny Committee

2

Document Pack Page 10



TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:  STEVE KENYON

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 
Team 

Cabinet Ward Members Partners

11/06/18 27/06/18

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Council

10/07/18 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 This report details the major variances between the Revised Estimate and the 
Outturn in respect of the Council’s Revenue and HRA budgets for 2017/18. 

 
1.2 Work on the closure of the 2017/18 Accounts is complete and the Responsible 

Finance Officer approved the draft Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 on 31 May 
2018. The figures in this report are consistent with the Statement of Accounts, 
though they are presented differently due to different reporting requirements 
required as part of CIPFA’s Accounting Code of Practice.

2.0 REVENUE OUTTURN 2017/18

2.1 As the table shows, there was a total overspend against the Revised Estimate of 
£0.844m.

£000’s

2017/2018 Revised Estimate 135,330
2017/2018 Outturn 136,174
Overspend           844

2.2 The revenue outturn and details of the major variations service by service are shown 
at Appendix A (pages 10 to 18) and are summarised below: 

Department Budget Outturn Variance

£000s £000s £000s

Children, Young People & Culture 52,411 55,251 2,840
Communities & Wellbeing 93,370 94,620 1,250
Resources & Regulation 2,938 4,145 1,207
Non Service Specific (13,389) (17,842) (4,453)

TOTAL 135,330 136,174 844
 

3

Document Pack Page 11



2.3 However, an overview of the reasons for this variance is outlined in the table overleaf 
below:

Final Outturn

Reason

Children 
Young People 

& Culture

£’000

Communities 
& 

Wellbeing

£’000

Resources & 
Regulation

£’000

Non 
Service 
Specific

£’000

TOTAL

£’000

Demand 
Pressures

2,516 6,163 0 608 9,287

Delayed 
Achievement of 
Cuts Options

777 3,633 250 0 4,660

Non-
Achievement of 
Cuts Options

785 0 52 0 837

Income 
Shortfall

0 212 993 0 1,205

Planned use of 
one-off funding

0 (3,872) 0 0 (3,872)

Continued 
Impact of 10 
Control 
Measures

(100) 0 (88) 0 (188)

Other (1,138) (4,886) 0 (5,061) (11,085)

TOTAL 2,840 1,250 1,207 (4,453) 844

2.4 All other things being equal, the outturn reported above will leave available General 
Fund balances standing at £7.549m at 31st March 2018 (see par. 4.1).   

3.0 SCHOOLS POSITION

3.1 The Dedicated Schools Grant is ring fenced and these externally provided monies 
can only be spent on schools and associated areas, which are specified by the 
Department for Education (DfE) in various Statutory Instruments.  In accordance 
with these statutory requirements, the balances of each school are carried forward 
into the next financial year for the benefit of the relevant school.
N.B. school Governing Bodies are the decision-makers for their delegated budgets, 
over which the local authority has very little management powers.

3.2 The overall level of school balances and associated spending as at 31st March 2018 
is a deficit of £6.310m, which represents an increase of £4.447m from the opening 
deficit balance of £1.863m. The £6.310m is the difference between the £11.127m 
deficit on Central Spend (see par. 3.4) less £4.817m surplus relating to schools 
balances (see table below and par. 3.3). 

This is summarised in the table below with details of previous years for 
comparison where it can be seen that the level of schools’ balances was greater 
than the level of overspending within the Central Spend part of the DSG Control 
Account. 

4

Document Pack Page 12



N.B. The difference in the Totals c/f (£11.127m) and the Total Variations (£11.022m) 
is the DSG Control Account deficit b/f of £0.105 million.

3.3 The level of school balances as at 31st March 2018 is a surplus of £4.817m.  

The 2016/17 balances included the now transferred balances of all the schools that 
converted to academy status during the 2017/18 financial year.  Subsequently a 
like-for-like comparison of the local authority’s school balances between the 2 years 
shows that the 2017/18 amount has increased by more than £340,000 when 
compared to 2016/17.

Of the 72 local authority schools:

 60% of schools increased the level of their surpluses during 2017/18, i.e. 
underspent their annual budget allocation, in total by over £800,000.

 One sixth of Bury schools each increased their school’s surplus by over £50,000 
during 2017/18.

 5 of these schools each increased their school’s surplus by more than £100,000 
during 2017/18.

Appendix B shows an analysis of movements on school balances to allow 
Members to consider the spread of school balances around the Borough.
 61 out of 72 schools with delegated budgets had surplus balances at the end of 

the 2017/18 financial year, which is only 3 fewer than at the end of the previous 
financial year. 

 11 schools are reporting balances, which are deemed “excessive” as defined by 
the “Scheme for Financing Schools” and as such will be subject to a balance 
control review by the Executive Director of Children, Young People & Culture, 
who will take into account the views of the Schools Forum. This is an increase 
from the 7 schools that had reportable balances in the previous financial year.  5 
schools have been above the relevant reportable threshold for 2 successive 
years, while 2 schools have been above the reportable threshold for 3 successive 
years.

5

Document Pack Page 13



 There are 11 schools reporting deficit balances compared to 9 schools with deficit 
balances in 2016/17 financial year and 2 schools in 2015/16. Of the 11 schools 
in a deficit position, at least 3 will be resolved during 2018/19 as the deficits will 
be cleared or the schools will no longer be part of the local authority.

 
 N.B. Any school requiring to set an overall deficit budget (after taking all funding, 

income and balances into account) can only do so after making a formal request 
for consideration to a deficit position by the Executive Director of Children, Young 
People and Culture and will only be allowed with prior approval and a robust 
recovery plan and acceptable timeframe.

3.4 However, there is a deficit of £11.127m relating to the Central Spend within the 
Dedicated Schools Grant and the DSG Control Account, which includes deficits 
brought forward from the previous 5 years. 

3.5 N.B. Additional budget allocations to meet increasing demands have been funded by 
increasing the deficit within the DSG Control Account, which as can be seen in 
paragraph 3.2 continues to increase to very high and unsustainable levels.

3.6 Last year’s Revenue Out-turn Report highlighted that significant action would be 
needed to be taken to reduce the amount of deficit.  

It is recognised that it is difficult to implement an in-year change as school budgets 
have already been determined and cannot be changed during the current financial 
year.  

Although there was an intention to “pay-off” the accumulated deficit as at the end 
of 2016/17 within 3 to 4 years, the current levels of demand pressures continue to 
escalate and lead to higher levels of unavoidable spending, which inevitably will 
significantly delay getting the DSG Control Account back into a balanced position.

The High Needs Funding Formula is scheduled to be fully implemented by 2022/23 
and the current transitional formula arrangements includes a “funding floor”, which 
in Bury’s case is a substantial amount of over £4m.  

If the “funding floor” wholly disappears in 2022/23 this will have an overwhelming 
devastating impact on the financial viability of the DSG Control Account unless 
substantial action to significantly reduce spending in the next 4 years.

3.7 The main variations within the Central Spend and the DSG Control Account are:

 The large increases in Central Spend since 2013/14 are as a consequence of 
the transfer of responsibilities for post-16 students with Learning Difficulties 
and Disabilities attending Sixth Form and FE colleges.  The level of funding 
made available by the Education Funding Agency’s predecessor was 
insufficient to meet the demand pressures of these students.

 Higher numbers of pupils attending other Local Authority and Independent 
Special Schools coupled with increased fees charged by these schools means 
that the budget continues to overspend, despite a budget increase to match 
the previous years’ spending levels.  

 Provision for Pupils with SEN includes services that have carried a number of 
vacancies, some in anticipation of the Service Reviews that have been 
undertaken in preparation for the savings requirements for 2017/18 to 
2019/20.

6

Document Pack Page 14



 There are a number of Education and Health Care plans that occur after the 
budget has been set at the start of the financial year.  These require funding 
and in some cases “top-up” funding for those pupils with more complex needs.

 The Insurance Scheme ceased to be offered as a traded service to schools at 
the end of the 2016/17 financial year as it has been in deficit for 5 years. 
During the 3 month cessation period several schools submitted claims that 
increased the level of the deficit above the 2016/17 premiums and these are 
unrecoverable in 2017/18. Consequently the remnant amount has been 
transferred off the Balance Sheet to the DSG Revenue Account.  The recovery 
plan is to clear the deficit from the additional monies being provided by the 
National Funding Formula over the next few years.

4.0 GENERAL FUND BALANCES

4.1 The closing position in respect of General Fund balances is as follows:
£m

General Fund Balance 31 March 2017 8.393
Less : 2017/18 Year End Overspend -0.844
General Fund Balance 31 March 2018 7.549
Less : Minimum balances to be retained in 2018/19 -4.250
Available balances at 1 April 2018 3.299

4.2 Given potential budget pressures facing the authority in the future it is strongly 
recommended that the available balances are retained.

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 In determining the minimum level of balances, a key aspect of the assessment made 
by the Interim Executive Director of Resources and Regulation is the level of risk 
faced by the authority that may impact on the financial situation.  

5.2 For 2018/19 the Council accepted the Interim Executive Director’s recommendation 
that the minimum level of balances should be kept at £4.250m.

5.3 It was also indicated that the minimum level of balances would be kept under regular 
review and this will happen quarterly as part of the budget and risk monitoring 
process.  However it is felt appropriate to also consider the balances position at this 
stage.

5.4 Departmental strategic risk assessments have also been completed and at this stage 
there are no issues that are anticipated to impact directly on balances over and 
above provision that has already been made around systems, demand levels, 
workforce development and changing structures as a result of the corporate risk 
assessments.  Departments will be setting out risk mitigation measures within their 
individual Medium Term Financial Strategies. 

5.5 A further assessment of minimum balances will be incorporated into the Month 3 
Budget Monitoring report that will be presented to Cabinet in September 2018.

5.6 Effective budget monitoring is vital and various risk management techniques have 
been applied to budget monitoring throughout the year.  These include cost bridges 
and the traffic light process which is used to assess budgets in terms of forecast over 
and underspending and secondly the identification of ‘hot spots’ based on risk factors 
that are inherent in individual budget areas.  Reports containing this information 
were provided on a regular basis to the Strategic Leadership Team, the Overview & 

7

Document Pack Page 15



Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet, Audit Committee and Joint SLT / Cabinet meetings. 

5.7 The use of this methodology will continue in 2018/19 and reports will continue to be 
presented to the Cabinet meetings and those others listed above. 

6.0 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN 2017/18

6.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for 2017/18 is attached at Appendix C. The 
HRA is a ring-fenced account funded principally through Housing Rents.  Any surplus 
or deficit is required to be carried forward between financial years. Councils cannot 
budget for a cumulative deficit on the HRA. In 2017/18 a contribution of £2.960m 
was made to the Business Plan Headroom Reserve; this maintains the working 
balance at £1.020m; this contribution was £2.314m more than expected. 

6.2 There are a number of variations that have contributed to this overall result however
the variances only exceed 10% and £50k in the following areas:

 Increase in provision for bad debts – the budget contained two provisions, 
£0.179m for uncollectable debts and £0.298m to reflect the potential 
impact that welfare benefit changes could have on the level of rent arrears; 
the contribution for the year, calculated with reference to the type of 
arrear, the amount outstanding on each individual case and the balance 
remaining in the provision following write off of debts, was £0.174m less 
than the budget. The reduced requirement has resulted in part from the 
slower implementation of some welfare benefit changes. The actions of the 
Welfare Reform Group and close working with partners in implementing 
the Corporate Debt Policy continue to contribute to the result. 

 Depreciation/impairment of fixed assets – impairment charges and 
significant gains on the revaluation of assets have resulted in a credit figure 
showing in the accounts, rather than a large debit balance as seen in 
previous years. However these entries are reversed back out of the HRA 
(Appropriation relevant to impairment) so have no impact on the ‘bottom 
line’ of the account; only the depreciation charges of £7.894m remain.

 Revenue contributions to capital – the contributions required to the costs 
of major works to the housing stock (and other HRA assets) are 
significantly lower than the budget due to significant slippage on planned 
schemes. Subject to Council approval it is anticipated that these resources 
will be required in 2018/19 to complete the 2017/18 programme, therefore 
the underspend will only sit in the Business Plan Headroom Reserve on a 
temporary basis rather than being available for other purposes. 

6.3 There are a number of factors that can impact on the HRA year-end balance but the 
main ones are normally void levels, the level of rent arrears and the levels of Right 
to Buy sales.

6.4 The rent loss due to voids for 2017/18 was on average 1.26%. The original dwelling 
rents budget allowed for a void level target of 1.6%. This reduction in void losses 
equates to an increase in rental income due of £0.101m.

6.5 The total rent arrears at the end of 2017/18 were £1.441m, an increase of 16.7% 
from the start of the year when arrears totalled £1.235m. 

8

Document Pack Page 16



6.6 The original HRA budgets assumed 70 Right to Buy sales during 2017/18. The actual 
number of sales in 2017/18 was 71. 

6.7 A major element of the HRA’s costs is the Management Fee paid to the authority’s 
ALMO, Six Town Housing. As the ALMO is a wholly owned Council company it is 
appropriate for Cabinet to take a view on the company’s financial position.

6.8    Six Town Housing’s draft accounts for the 2017/18 financial year show that the ALMO 
made a surplus of £0.304m on a turnover of £19.909m, a rate of 1.5% (for 2016/17 
the rate was 1.4%); the surplus for 2017/18 excludes pension adjustments made in 
line with FRS102 requirements. 

6.9 Six Town Housing have developed a Reserves Policy (with input from the Council’s 
section 151 Officer) which determines the minimum level of balances that the 
company should hold; the minimum level for 2017/18 was assessed to be £1.020m 
and the draft accounts indicate cash and short term deposits totalling £3.062m at 
the end of 2017/18. The use of reserves is subject to joint decisions by Six Town 
Housing and the Council.

7.0 OTHER ISSUES

7.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that Councils have their Accounts 
approved by 31 May each year by the Council’s Section 151 Officer. The unaudited 
accounts were approved by the Council’s Section 151 Officer on 31 May. They will 
be presented to Audit Committee members on 17 July 2018 for approval.

7.2 Members are also asked to note that the Accounts for 2017/18 were available for 
public inspection at the Town Hall for 30 working days effective from 1 July 2018.  
This matter was advertised in the local press and placed on the Council’s website 
and the Accounts can be viewed by contacting the Interim Executive Director of 
Resources & Regulation or the Head of Financial Management (details below).

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

8.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications.  

9.0 FUTURE ACTIONS

9.1 Budget monitoring reports for 2018/19 will continue to be presented to the Strategic 
Leadership Team on a monthly basis and on a quarterly basis to the Cabinet, Joint 
SLT / Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee.

Councillor Eamonn O’Brien
Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing

Background documents:

Revenue Cost Information and Finance Working Papers, 2017/18
For further information on the details of this report, please contact:

Mr S. Kenyon, Interim Executive Director of Resources & Regulation, Tel. 0161 253 6922, 
E-mail: S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk, or
Mr A. Baldwin, Head of Financial Management, Tel. 0161 253 5034,
E-mail: A.Baldwin@bury.gov.uk

9

Document Pack Page 17

mailto:S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk
mailto:A.Baldwin@bury.gov.uk


FINAL OUTTURN 2017/18 AND EXPLANATIONS FOR VARIANCES           Appendix A

2017/18 
Current 
Budget

2017/18 
Outturn

Variance Reason For Variance One – 
Off /

Ongoing
£000's £000's £000's

Department of Children, Young People and Culture

Learning – 
Schools

0 0 0 Any underspend or overspend funded via 
the DSG are rolled forward into the next 
financial year.

Learning – Non 
Schools

17,844 18,019 175 Quality & Advisory Service (-£0.104m) - 
underspend due to a staff secondment 
and delays in the development of the 
School Improvement Clusters.

Asset Management (+£0.045m) – 
charges for security, alarms and 
community safety for vacant properties 
that still come under CYP&C.

SEN Home to School Transport 
(+£0.192m) - the level of demand has 
increased from previous years; the 
budget is consistently under pressure.

SEN Home to College Transport 
(+£0.036m) - again due to increased 
demand from the number of students 
attending local colleges. 

Under spends on Non-SEN transport 
(-£0.021m) – as there was lower than 
anticipated uptake of bus passes. 

Other minor underspends (+£0.027m).

Ongoing

One-off

Ongoing

Ongoing

One-off

One-off

Social Care &
Safeguarding

17,208 17,155 (52) Childcare and Early Years (-£0.375m) –
deferred implementation of the proposed 
structure set to achieve the 2017-18 
savings led to the non-filling of vacant 
posts. 

Safeguarding Unit (+£0.078m) - agency 
staff were brought in to cover a vacant 
post and long term sickness.

Initial Response Team (+£0.056m) – 
increased demand for discretionary 
payments for children not looked after 
and interpretation costs, mileage and car 
parking.  The over spend was offset by a 
saving on the MASH team which has a 
vacant post.

One-off

One-off

One-off

10

Document Pack Page 18



Safeguarding – External Legal Fees 
(+£0.156m) – the trend nationally has 
been for increased use of proceedings 
and Bury Council appears to be following 
that same trajectory.  This has led to the 
increased use of barristers and experts.

Children’s Disabilities Team (-£0.257m) 
–the budget continues to support a 
number of children with highly complex 
needs. Savings due to a number of 
support packages where the full 
entitlement of care was not utilised plus 
income has been recouped on direct 
payments following an audit of the 
payments.

Children’s Domestic Violence (-£0.089m) 
– saving due to delays in developing the 
service in-house following the cessation 
of the Barnardo’s contract in December 
2016.

The Reach Out Adolescent Support Unit 
(-£0.121m) – underspending due to 
changes in the planned delivery of the 
service and vacancies.

Family Placement (-£0.113m) – Savings 
on salaries due to a number of staff 
changes due to the establishment of the 
RAA. There were also savings on Home 
from Home Carers and Adoption Support 
Fees.  There is still pressure within 
Fostering due to an increase in the 
number of children being fostered.

Leaving Care (+£0.604m) - the impact of 
supporting young people until the age of 
21 continues to cause the service to 
overspend.

Other minor underspends (+£0.009m).

Ongoing

One-off

One-off

One-off

One-off

Ongoing

Other 
Management 
Costs

2,180 2,616 436 Strategic Management (+£0.117m) - the 
overspend is due to the remainder of the 
2016-17 budget savings that have yet to 
be achieved.

Teachers Pensions (-£0.106m) - reduced 
demand on the service.

Catering – (+£0.425m) – Reduced 
numbers of primary school children 
purchasing meals has led to a net loss of 
£185,000, plus an increased income 
target without the corresponding price 
increase has led to an income shortfall of 
£120,000.  The purchase of the CYPaD 
system and equipment for schools has 
added £42,000 to the overspend.  There 

Ongoing

One-off 

Ongoing

11

Document Pack Page 19



has also been a reduction in the level of 
catering activity within the Civic Halls 
leading to a net reduction in income of 
almost £95,000.

Strategy / 
Commissioning

1,960 1,945 (15) Savings on Social Care Admin and 
Assistant Director post were offset by 
Strategic Support.

One-off

Departmental 
Wide

7,772 7,772 0 IAS19 pension costs.

Children’s 
Agency

3,058 5,068     2,010 The service is largely demand led and 
continues to support a large number of 
complex and high cost cases. At the end 
of March there were 77 active 
placements in residential and IFA 
placements.

Ongoing

Libraries, Arts 
& Museums

2,389         
        
             

2,676

         

287 Arts, Museum & Tourist Information 
Service (+£0.110m) - The Museum 
Development income budget from prior 
years is still unachievable, and stands at 
£95,000.  Additional pressure is on this 
budget due to the decision to retain the 
Tourist Information Centre therefore the 
saving was not achieved in 2017-18.

Libraries (+£0.177m) – Delays in 
agreeing the plans for the Library Service 
led to the savings target not being met in 
2017. Additional costs for architects fees 
and caretaking and cleaning added to the 
overspend.

Ongoing

One-off

TOTAL 
CHILDREN, 
YOUNG PEOPLE 
& CULTURE

52,411 55,251       2,840

Department of Communities & Wellbeing

Adult Social 
Care 
Operations

5,359 5,359 0 The ASC Operations service delivered a   
balanced budget. However the balanced 
budget was only achieved through a 
combination of Better Care Funding, One 
off Grant funding, use of departmental 
reserves and offsetting underspends 
elsewhere within ASC budgets.   However 
there are still unachieved historic savings 
to be within the service in addition to 
further savings to be made in 2018/19.
Mental Health South (-£0.026m) – 
underspend on staffing budgets.

Ongoing

Workforce 
Modernisation

767  794 27 The overspend largely relates to a 
shortfall in the budget provision for rent 
at the Bury Adult Learning Centre 
(BALC). Work is underway to offset this 
shortfall including a plan to recharge 
Persona for the use of rooms within 
BALC.

Ongoing

12

Document Pack Page 20



Housing 
Related 
Services

2,127

      

1,924

 

(203)

       
  

 

Housing related services underspent due 
to additional income received from the 
asylum seekers contract held with 
SERCO. There was also additional income 
received from housing benefit as a result 
in an increase in the property portfolio 
and additional income was received as a 
result of sales relating to the affordable 
housing scheme. There was also a small 
underspend on salaries relating to vacant 
post to being filled.

One-off

Finance, 
Customer 
Services & 
Asset 
Management

9,022 9,022

 

0 This was a balanced budget .However in 
addition to the savings target attributed 
to this service area in 2017/18 previous 
years unachieved departmental   savings 
were pooled against this service. As a 
consequence the combined savings 
targets were met (as a one off) through 
the use of a call on departmental 
reserves.  

Ongoing

Commissioning 
& Procurement 
-  Care in the 
Community

29,939 29,939 0 Care in the Community was a balanced 
budget. However, if support was not 
received from the Improved Better Care 
Fund (IBCF) this budget would have 
overspent by £2.854m.  

Ongoing

Commissioning 
& Procurement 
- Other

15,553  15,550 (3) Mainly a balanced budget due to the 
combination of the use of the Improved 
Better Care Fund and offsetting 
underspends across the Commissioning 
& Procurement service area.  However    
there are still on-going pressures  
relating Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguarding (DOLS) Assessment costs 
within the service.

Ongoing

Public Health 10,989 10,989 0 Public Health has a balanced budget. In 
addition to the 2017/18 Public Health 
budget allocation (c.£11m)  there was a   
call on Public health reserves of c.£1m.

Ongoing

Neighbourhood 
and Leisure 

19,614 21,043 +1,429 Beverage & Vending (+£0.098m) – 
Difficulties in meeting budget target due 
to reduced footfall/sales. 

Civic Halls (+£0.225m) – Civic Halls 
continue to face difficulties in achieving 
income targets, unforeseen/necessary 
repairs resulted in some overspends on 
expenditure budgets.

Environmental Service (+£0.157m) –
Overspend relates to unachieved 
2017/2018 savings targets. A strategic 
review across the public protection, 
regulation and enforcement across CWB 
and Resource and Regulations has been 
signed off by SLT. And a project working 
group has been set up to review the 
service areas. 

Ongoing

 
Ongoing

Ongoing

13

Document Pack Page 21



Communities (-£0.006m) – Minor 
variations across the service.

Grounds Maintenance / Parks & 
Countryside  (+£0.120m) 
Less external income than anticipated, 
and overspends on staff, plant and 
equipment.

Bereavement Services (-£0.005m) - 
Minor variations across the service.

Highways (-£0.009m) 
Additional income from drop crossings.

Sports & leisure (+£0.465m)  
Savings from previous years not 
achieved due to longer term growth and 
investment plan. Medium term recovery 
plan in place which include building 
condition surveys.

Transport  Services (-£0.190m) 
Additional income, which will be used to 
offset savings targets within the service 
in 2018/2019.

Waste Services (+£0.613m)
 A combination of unachieved savings 
targets from 2016/2017 and 2017/2018. 
The review of waste management is 
ongoing. A governance structure is in 
place including a project team and 
strategic review group. There is also 
Continued pressure on the Winter 
Gritting Budget.

Public Conveniences/Street Cleaning 
(-£0.004m) largely a balanced budget.

One-off

One-off

One-off

One-off

One-off

One-off

Ongoing

One-off

TOTAL 
COMMUNITIES 
& WELLBEING

93,370 94,620 1,250

Resources and Regulation Department 

Executive Director of Resources & Regulation
Finance & 
Efficiency

3,599 3,723 124 Staffing underspend due to holding of 
vacancies and maximising funding 
(-£0.041m).

Tightening of running costs expenditure 
(-£0.069m)

Contribution to the bad debt provision 
(+£0.209m).

Unachieved savings (+£0.100m) offset 
by additional external income 
(-£0.034m).

Ongoing

One-off

Ongoing

One-off

14

Document Pack Page 22



Reduced superannuation recharges from 
Tameside MBC (-£0.084m).

Bank charges, credit card charges 
(+£0.043m).

One-off

Ongoing

Human 
Resources

813 780 (33) Reduced staffing costs due to restructure 
(-£0.153m).

Overspends on software licences, AGMA 
subscription, software licences and 
historic Central Admin Recharge under-
recovery of income (+£0.140m).

Tightening of running costs expenditure 
and overachieved income (-£0.020m).

One-off

Ongoing

One-off

Legal & 
Democratic 
Services

1,078 1,096 18 Member Allowances and running costs 
underspends (-£0.087m).

Democratic Services staffing underspend 
(-£0.038m).

Unachieved savings targets (+£0.150m), 
offset by overachieved income 
(-£0.046m).

Staffing/locum net overspend within 
Legal services (+£0.060m).

Tightening of controllable expenditure 
and minor variances (-£0.021m).

Ongoing

One-off

Ongoing

One-off

One-off

Customer 
Support & 
Collections

1,223 1,013 (210) Council Tax and NNDR summons costs 
income over-recovery (-£0.183m), over-
recovery of Council Tax subsidy 
administration grant (-£0.014m) and 
NNDR cost of collection (-£0.003m).

Net staffing/agency cover underspend 
(-£0.268m), offset by overspends on 
software licences and postages 
(+£0.108m), unachieved income 
/savings target (+£0.142m) and minor 
variances (+£0.008m).

Ongoing

One-off

ICT (10) (11) (1) Net under-recovery of printing service 
(+£0.049m).

Under-recovery of telephony income 
(+£0.044m).

Reduced leasing costs (-£0.090m).

Over-recovery of external income 
(-£0.012m) offset by minor variances 
(+£0.011m).

Ongoing

One-off

One-off

One-off

15

Document Pack Page 23



Property & Asset 
Management

(3,069) (2,137) 932 Shortfall in rent income due to increased 
voids / (+£0.445m).

Shortfall on Millgate / Longfield income 
due to increased voids and permitted 
deductions (+£0.308m).

Staffing underspend due to holding of 
vacancies and training freeze 
(-£0.055m).

Unachieved income target combined with 
additional costs on investment properties 
(+£0.224m).

Various minor variances (+£0.010m).

Ongoing

Ongoing

One-off

Ongoing

One-off
Total Executive 
Director 
Resources & 
Regulation

3,634 4,464 830

Localities

Engineering 
Services

(519) (279) 240 GMRAPS (+£0.034m) under recovered 
ambitious targets set on outdated data. 

Coring (+£0.044m) under recovered due 
to suspension due to pending review 
minimised by careful management of 
controllable budgets. 

Car parking under recovered 
(+£0.269m).  Shortfall in Pay & Display 
income & contract income off set by 
underspends on programmed 
improvements. 

Bus Lane Enforcement reduced fines 
(+£0.084m). 

Underspends on Traffic management 
projects (-£0.085m).

Net underspends on Decriminalised 
parking fines net underspend 
(-£0.012m) and council parking permits 
(-£0.038m).

Underspends on Engineering projects  
(-£0.056m).

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

One-off

One-off

One-off

Planning & 
Development 
Control

408 499 92 Development Management have had 
overspends on professional fees 
(+£0.015m) and a shortfall in planning 
application income (+£0.184m). 

Underspends within Building Control due 
to staff vacancies / staff not being in 
superannuation scheme (-£0.054m), 
increased recharge income (-£0.055m) 
offset by a shortfall on building 
regulations income (+£0.030m).

One-off 

One-off 

16

Document Pack Page 24



Underspends within Strategic Planning 
due to worklife balance initiatives and 
additional income (-£0.035m), minor 
variations (+£0.007m).

One-off

Trading 
Standards & 
Licensing

413 305 (108) Over recovery of income for Licensing, 
Alcohol & Entertainment and Gambling, 
offset by shortfall in income for 
Miscellaneous licensing. (-£0.029m).

Underspend for Trading Standards due to 
additional income from traded work. 
(-£0.079m).

Ongoing

One-off

Assistant 
Director of 
Localities

103 155 52 Unachieved savings target (£+0.050m, 
various minor overspends (+£0.002m).

On-going

Total Localities 405 680 275
Environment & Operational Services
Administrative 
Buildings

(196) (89) 107  Overspend due to business rates 
(+£0.063m) and unachieved savings 
(+£0.050m).

Overspend on cleaning contract charges 
(+£0.021m) and shortfall in rental 
income (+£0.014m), offset by 
underspend on utility costs (-£0.031m) 
and other minor underspends 
(-£0.010m).

Ongoing

Ongoing

Architectural 
Services

(557) (385) 173 Under-recovery of income due to 
reduced fees/slippage of major schemes 
(+£0.181m), slightly offset by minor 
staff savings (-£0.008m).

One-off 

Energy 
Conservation

158 81 (78) Reduced CRC Allowances. One-off

Bradley Fold 
Depot

41 44 3 Overspend due to building and 
equipment maintenance costs 
(+£0.003m).

One-off

Supply Chain 
Services

(99) (201) (102) Higher volume of trading activity 
bringing additional income (-£0.102m) 
other minor offsetting variances. 

One-off

Emergency 
Planning / 
Response

(447) (449) (2) Minor variation. Ongoing

Total 
Environment & 
Operational 
Services

(1,101) (999) 102

TOTAL 
RESOURCES & 
REGULATION

2,938 4,145 1,207

Grants to 
Voluntary 

680 413 (267) Reduced grants issued – 
Commissioning Fund (-£0.203m), 

One-off

17

Document Pack Page 25



Organisations Section 48 Grants (-£0.033m), 
Contingency Fund (-£0.018m), 
Transport grants (-£0.013m)

Non Service Specific Items
Housing (152) (152) 0 Net Housing Benefit subsidy 

(-£0.031m),
Reduced Housing Benefit administration 
grant received (+£0.041m), 
Reduced Housing Loan account income 
(+£0.030m),
Services for the Wider Community 
underspend (-£0.040m).

One-off

Ongoing

Ongoing

One-Off

Cost of 
Borrowing

5,074 4,295 (779) Increased return on investments           
(-£0.049m), reduced loan repayments 
(-£0.374m), & reduced principal 
repayments (- £0.356m)

One-off

Investments (3,900) (4,811) (911) Increased dividend receipts. One-off

Chief Executive

Corporate 
Management 

328

1,397

376

1,931

48

534

Increased staffing costs (+£0.048m).

Increased subscriptions (+£0.064m), 
professional fees (+£0.027m),  
Apprenticeship levy costs (+£0.027m) & 
staffing costs (+£0.042m) together with 
increased Coroners Court costs 
(+£0.374m).

One-off

One-off

Provisions 2,503 (172)   (2,675) Reduced contributions to provisions and 
reserves (-£2.675m).

One-off

Disaster 
Expenses

11 27 16 Storm Doris (+£0.017m). One-off

Townside Fields

Car Lease salary 
Sacrifice Scheme

              0

0

        (64)

(23)

       (64)

(23)

Additional income for provision of Unit 4 
system and management costs. 
(+£0.064m).
Additional increase of income from 
administration of the scheme 
(+£0.023m).

One-off

One-off

Collection Fund 
Surplus

(1,017) (1,350) (333) Additional income from 2016/17 NNDR 
Growth Pilot.                        

One-off

Passenger 
Transport Levy

7,081 7,081 0 N/A

Environment 
Agency

97 97 0 N/A

TOTAL NON 
SERVICE 
SPECIFIC

(14,069) (18,255) (4,186)

Total Revenue 
Expenditure 
(exc. Schools)

135,330 136,174 844

18

Document Pack Page 26



LEVEL AND MOVEMENT OF SCHOOL RESERVES         Appendix B

Table 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Number 

of 
Schools

Number 
of 

Schools

Number 
of 

Schools

Number 
of 

Schools

Number 
of Schools

Nursery & Primary
Greater than +9% 7 9 8 6 8

+8% to 9% 3 6 4 2 2
+5% to 8% 26 25 25 17 21

0% to 5% 26 20 22 28 19
Deficits 1 1 1 7 6

Total 63 61 60 60 56

Secondary
Greater than +6% 4 1 2 1 2

+5% to 6% 1 2 3 - -
0% to 5% 7 9 7 10 6

Deficits 2 2 1 2 4
Total 14 14 13 13 12

Special & PRU’s 4

Greater than +9% - - 1 - 1
+8% to 9% 1 - - - -
+5% to 8% 1 2 2 1 1

0% to 5% 1 3 2 4 2
Deficits 1 - - - 1

Total 4 5 5 5 5

Number above the original “Excessive 
Surplus” thresholds (Prim/Spec 8% & 
High 5%)

16 18 18 9 13

Number above the new “Excessive 
Surplus” thresholds 
(Prim/Spec 9% & High 6%)

11 10 11 7 11

19

Document Pack Page 27



Number of Schools – Surpluses/Deficits in Monetary Terms

Table 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Number of 

Schools
Number of 

Schools
Number of 

Schools
Number of 

Schools
Number of 

Schools
Nursery & Primary

Deficits
£0 to £10,000 - 1 1 2 1

£10,000 to £20,000 1 - - 2 1
£20,000 to £50,000 - - 1 3 1

Greater than £50,000 - - - - 3
Surpluses

£0 to £50,000 24 25 19 28 19
£50,000 to £100,000 26 19 27 18 22

£100,000 to £150,000 11 15 10 6 8
£150,000 to £200,000 12 12 3 1 -
Greater than £200,000 - - - - 1

Total 63 61 60 60 56

Secondary
Deficits

£0 to £100,000 - - - 1 3
£100,000 to £200,000 - - 1 1 1
£200,000 to £300,000 1 1 - - -
Greater than £300,000 1 1 - - -

Surpluses
£0 to £50,000 - - 1 2 1

£50,000 to £100,000 2 2 3 1 2
£100,000 to £150,000 - 3 - 1 2
£150,000 to £200,000 1 2 3 5 -
£200,000 to £250,000 4 4 - 1 1
£250,000 to £500,000 5 1 5 1 2

Total 14 14 13 13 12

Special & PRU’s
Deficits

£0 to £25,000 - - - - 1
Surpluses

£0 to £50,000 2 2 1 3 1
£50,000 to £100,000 - - 2 1 -

£100,000 to £150,000 - - - - -
£150,000 to £200,000 1 1 - - 1
£200,000 to £250,000 - 1 1 - 2
Greater than £250,000 1 1 1 1 -

Total 4 5 5 5 5

20

Document Pack Page 28



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT APPENDIX C

2017/18 2017/18 VARIATION
REVISED OUTTURN FROM 
ESTIMATE BUDGET

   £    £    £
INCOME
   Dwelling rents 29,490,400 29,491,460 (1,060)
   Non-dwelling rents 198,800 197,951 849 
   Heating charges 46,600 46,687 (87)
   Other charges for services and facilities 945,400 945,798 (398)
   Contributions towards expenditure 34,900 43,885 (8,985)

------------------------------------------------------
   Total Income 30,716,100 30,725,780 (9,680)

------------------------------------------------------
EXPENDITURE
   Repairs and Maintenance 6,405,100 6,404,794 (306)
   General Management 7,015,300 6,969,988 (45,312)
   Special Services 1,145,400 1,134,417 (10,983)
   Rents, rates, taxes and other charges                107,300 76,409 (30,891)
   Increase in provision for bad debts 477,500 303,752 (173,748)
   Cost of Capital Charge 4,463,600 4,435,644 (27,956)
   Depreciation/Impairment of fixed assets
   - council dwellings 7,926,900 (3,000,121) (10,927,021)
   Depreciation of fixed assets - other assets 51,100 63,376 12,276 
   Debt Management Expenses 40,600 38,047 (2,553)
   Contrib. to Business Plan Headroom Reserve 645,900 2,959,722 2,313,822 

------------------------------------------------------
   Total Expenditure 28,278,700 19,386,027 (8,892,673)

------------------------------------------------------
   Net cost of services (2,437,400) (11,339,753) (8,902,353)

   Amortised premia / discounts (11,400) (11,382) 18 
   Interest receivable - on balances (43,000) (25,875) 17,125 
   Interest receivable - on loans (mortgages) (100) (310) (210)

------------------------------------------------------
   Net operating expenditure (2,491,900) (11,377,320) (8,885,420)

   Appropriations

   Appropriation relevant to impairment/revaluation 10,830,348 10,830,348 
   Revenue contributions to capital 2,481,900 536,972 (1,944,928)

------------------------------------------------------
   (Surplus) / Deficit (10,000) (10,000) (0)

   Working balance brought forward (1,010,000) (1,010,000) 0 

------------------------------------------------------
   Working balance carried forward (1,020,000) (1,020,000) (0)

------------------------------------------------------

21

Document Pack Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: CABINET
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 27  JUNE 2018
10  JULY 2018

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 
2017/18

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND HOUSING

CONTACT OFFICER: STEVE KENYON, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
RESOURCES & REGULATION

TYPE OF DECISION: CABINET (KEY DECISION)

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

This paper is within the public domain 

SUMMARY: PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 

The Council undertakes Treasury Management Activities 
in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, which requires that the Council 
receives an annual strategy report by 31 March for the 
year ahead and an annual review report of the previous 
year by 30 September. This report is the review of 
Treasury Management activities during 2017/18.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

It is recommended that, in accordance with CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management, the report 
be noted.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes

Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

As set out in the report and the comment of 
the Interim Executive Director of Resources 
and Regulation below.

Statement by Assistant Director of This report provides information on the 

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 31 Agenda Item 6



Resources (Finance and 
Efficiency):

Council’s debt, borrowing, and investment 
activity for the financial year ending on 31st 
March 2018 in conformity with the CIPFA Code 
of Practice for Treasury Management.  The 
successful management of the Council’s 
borrowing and investments is central to the 
Council’s financial strategy, both in the short 
term and in ensuring a balanced debt profile 
over the next 25 to 60 years.  

The overall strategy for 2017/18 was to 
finance capital expenditure by running down 
cash/investment balances and using shorter 
term borrowing rather than more expensive 
long term loans. The taking out of longer term 
loans (1 to 10 years) to finance capital 
spending would only then be considered if 
required by the Council’s underlying cash flow 
needs. 

Debt decreased slightly during the year, 
£194,510 million at 31st March 2018 compared 
to £195,682 million at 31st March 2017. The 
average borrowing rate rose slightly from 
3.96% to 3.95%. Investments at 31 March 
2018 stood at £21,250 million, compared to 
£18,550 million the previous year, the 
decrease being due to the use of 
cash/investment balances to repay maturing 
debt. The average rate of return on 
investments was 0.24% in 2017/18 compared 
to 0.58% in 2016/17.

Equality/Diversity implications: No - (see paragraph 8.1, page 9)

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes. The presentation of an annual report on 
Treasury Management by 30th September of 
the following financial year is a requirement of 
the Council’s Financial Regulations 5.7, as part 
of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
Budget and Policy framework, relating to Risk 
Management and Control of Resources: 
Treasury Management.

Are there any legal implications? No

Staffing/ICT/Property: There are no direct staffing, ICT or property
implications arising from this report.

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

TRACKING/PROCESS         INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:  STEVE KENYON

2

Document Pack Page 32



Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet Ward Members Partners

27/6/18

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Council

10/7/18

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2017/18. This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the 
Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, 
(the Prudential Code). 

During 2017/18 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council 
should receive the following reports:

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 22/02/2017)
 a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 17/01/2018)
 an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 

compared to the strategy (this report) 

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and 
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is, therefore, 
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously 
approved by members.  

1.3 This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to 
give scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee.  

2.0 THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES  

2.1 During the calendar year of 2017, there was a major shift in expectations in 
financial markets in terms of how soon Bank Rate would start on a rising trend.  
After the UK economy showed growth in the second half of 2016, growth in the 
first half of 2017 was disappointingly weak, being the slowest for the first half of 
any year since 2012. The main reason for this was the sharp increase in inflation 
caused by the devaluation of sterling after the EU referendum, feeding increases 
into the cost of imports into the economy.  This caused a reduction in consumer 
disposable income and spending power as inflation exceeded average wage 
increases.  Consequently, the services sector of the economy, accounting for 
around 75% of GDP, saw weak growth as consumers responded by cutting back 
on their expenditure. However, growth did pick up modestly in the second half 

3

Document Pack Page 33



of 2017.  Consequently, market expectations during the autumn, rose 
significantly that the MPC would be heading in the direction of imminently raising 
Bank Rate.  The minutes of the MPC meeting of 14 September indicated that the 
MPC was likely to raise Bank Rate very soon.  The 2 November MPC quarterly 
Inflation Report meeting raised Bank Rate from 0.25% to 0.50%.

2.2 The 8 February MPC meeting minutes then revealed another sharp hardening in 
MPC warnings on a more imminent and faster pace of increases in Bank Rate 
than had previously been expected. Market expectations for increases in Bank 
Rate, therefore, shifted considerably during the second half of 2017-18 and 
resulted in investment rates from 3 – 12 months increasing sharply during the 
spring quarter.

2.3 PWLB borrowing rates increased correspondingly to the above developments with 
the shorter term rates increasing more sharply than longer term rates.  In 
addition, UK gilts have moved in a relatively narrow band this year, (within 25 
bps for much of the year), compared to US treasuries. During the second half of 
the year, there was a noticeable trend in treasury yields being on a rising trend 
with the Fed raising rates by 0.25% in June, December and March, making six 
increases in all from the floor. The effect of these three increases was greater in 
shorter terms around 5 year, rather than longer term yields. 

2.4 The major UK landmark event of the year was the inconclusive result of the 
general election on 8 June.  However, this had relatively little impact on financial 
markets.  

3.0 THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 
MARCH 2018

3.1 At the beginning and the end of 2017/18 the Council‘s treasury (excluding 
borrowing by PFI and finance leases) position was as follows:

 Balance at 31/03/17 Balance at 31/03/18
 
 

General 
Fund HRA Total General 

Fund HRA Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total Debt 76,898 118,784 195,682 75,726 118,784 194,510
CFR 128,293 118,784 247,077 128,293 118,784 247,077
Over / (under) 
borrowing (51,395) 0 (51,395) (52,567) 0 (52,567)

Total 
Investments   18,550   21,250

Net Debt   177,132   173,260

 Balance at 31/03/17 Balance at 31/03/18
 
 
 

Average Rate 
/ Return

Average Life 
of Debt 
(years)

Average Rate / 
Return

Average Life 
of Debt 
(years)

Debt 3.96% 27 3.96% 26
Investments 0.58%  0.24%  

4

Document Pack Page 34



4.0 THE STRATEGY FOR 2017/18

4.1 The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 
2017/18 anticipated that Bank Rate would not start rising from 0.25% until 
quarter 2 2019 and then only increase once more before 31.3.2020.  There 
would also be gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed borrowing rates 
during 2017/18 and the two subsequent financial years. Variable, or short-term 
rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.  
Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis promoted a 
cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be dominated by 
low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns 
compared to borrowing rates.

4.2 In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone borrowing to avoid the 
cost of holding higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.  

4.3 During 2017/18, longer term PWLB rates were volatile but with little overall 
direction, whereas shorter term PWLB rates were on a rising trend during the 
second half of the year.  

5.0 THE BORROWING REQUIREMENT AND DEBT

5.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is 
termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  

 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
 Actual Estimate Actual
Capital Financing 
Requirement

£'000 £'000 £'000

CFR – non HRA 126,936 123,875 128,293
CFR – HRA existing 40,531 40,531 40,531
Housing Reform Settlement 78,253 78,253 78,253
Total CFR 245,720 242,660 247,077

6.0 BORROWING RATES IN 2017/18

6.1 PWLB certainty maturity borrowing rates - the graph below shows how 
PWLB 25 and 50 year rates have been volatile during the year with little 
consistent trend. However, shorter rates were on a rising trend during the second 
half of the year and reached peaks in February / March. During the year, the 50 
year PWLB target (certainty) rate for new long term borrowing was 2.5% in 
quarters 1 and 3 and 2.6% in quarters 2 and 4. 

5

Document Pack Page 35



7.0 BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2017/18

7.1 An analysis of movements at nominal values on loans during the year is shown 
below:

 Balance at 
31/03/17

Loans 
raised Loans repaid Balance at 

31/03/18
 £000's £000's £000's £000's
PWLB 131,453 0 0 131,453
Market 62,500 0 (2,000) 60,500
Temporary Loans 0 2,000 0 2,000
Other loans 3 0 0 3
Bury MBC Debt 193,956 2,000 (2,000) 193,956
Airport PWLB Debt 1,726 0 (1,172) 554
Total Debt 195,682 2,000 (3,172) 194,510

7.2 No new loans were raised during the year.

7.3 No debt rescheduling was undertaking during the year as the average 1% 
differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates 
made rescheduling unviable.

7.4 The active monitoring of the debt portfolio, the full year effect of previous 
rescheduling of loans, and the taking of new loans at historically low rates, have 
decreased the average Interest rate on the debt held over time: 

Year 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Average 
Interest Rate 
on Debt

3.96% 3.96% 3.95% 3.96% 3.96%

6

Document Pack Page 36



7.5 From 2013/14 the average interest rate has stayed constant due to the borrowing 
of new loans at historically low levels.

8.0 INVESTMENT RATES IN 2017/18

8.1 Investments rates for 3 months and longer have been on a rising trend during the 
second half of the year in the expectation of Bank Rate increasing from its floor 
of 0.25%, and reached a peak at the end of March. Bank Rate was duly raised 
from 0.25% to 0.50% on 2.11.17 and remained at that level for the rest of the 
year.  However, further increases are expected over the next few years. Deposit 
rates continued into the start of 2017/18 at previous depressed levels due, in 
part, to a large tranche of cheap financing being made available under the Term 
Funding Scheme to the banking sector by the Bank of England; this facility ended 
on 28.2.18. 

9.0 INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2017/18

9.1 The Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance, which was been 
implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council on 22 
February 2017.  This policy set out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit 
rating agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating 
outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc.).  

9.2 The Council manages its investments in-house (with advice from Capita Asset 
Services) with the overall objective to balance risk with return and the overriding 
consideration being given to the security of the available funds.

7

Document Pack Page 37



9.3 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and 
the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

9.4 The strategy recognised that the Council’s funds would be mainly cash-flow 
driven. The Council would seek to utilise business reserve accounts and short 
dated deposits in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.

9.5 Detailed below is the result of the investment strategy undertaken by the 
Council.  

 Average 
Investment

Rate of 
Return 

Benchmark 
Return *

Internally Managed £30,445,229 0.24% 0.21%

* the benchmark return is the average 7-day London Interbank Bid (LIBID) 
uncompounded rate sourced from Capita Asset Services

9.6 Investments at 31 March 2018 stood at £21,250m (£18.550m at 31 March 
2017).

 

Investment 
at 

31/03/17

Amount 
Invested 
in year

Investments 
realised in 

year

Balance 
at 

31/03/18
 £000's £000's £000's £000's
Fixed Rate Investments    
Bank of Scotland 3,000 0 (3,000) 0
Plymouth City Council 0 10,000 (10,000) 0
Total - Fixed rate 0 10,000 (10,000) 0
Notice Accounts    
Barclays Bank - 32 day Notice 
account 0 6,000 (3,000) 3,000
Barclays Bank - 95 day Notice 
account 0 15,750 (10,250) 5,500
Total - Notice accounts 0 21,750 (13,250) 8,500
Call Accounts    
Barclays Bank - Flexible Interest 
Bearing Current Account 15,000 80,180 (94,980) 200
Bank of Scotland - Call Account 550 222,300 (210,300) 12,550
Total Investments 15,550 334,230 (328,530) 21,250

9.7 The table below gives details of the fixed rate investments made during the year.

 Rate Amount 
£000's Start Date End Date

BANK OF SCOTLAND 0.60% 2,000 17/02/2017 17/08/2017
BANK OF SCOTLAND 0.60% 1,000 10/03/2017 11/09/2017
BANK OF SCOTLAND 0.36% 1,000 29/09/2017 28/12/2017
BANK OF SCOTLAND 0.36% 1,000 28/12/2017 29/03/2018
Plymouth City Council 0.35% 10,000 10/11/2017 12/02/2018
Total  15,000   

8

Document Pack Page 38



10.0 COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY LIMITS

10.1 During the financial year the Council operated within the treasury limits and 
Prudential Indicators set out the Council’s Treasury Policy Statement and annual 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement. 

11.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

11.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications.  

12.0 FUTURE ACTIONS

12.1 Treasury Management Updates and Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 will be 
presented on a quarterly basis to the Cabinet and the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee.

13.0 CONCLUSION

13.1 It is recommended that Members note the treasury management activity that 
has taken place during the financial year 2017/18.

Councillor Eamon O’Brien
Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing

Background documents:

Unaudited Final Accounts Bury MBC 2017/18
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice in the Public Services
CIPFA The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities
Treasury Management Report 2017-18
Financial markets and economic briefing papers
For further information on the details of this report and copies of the 
detailed variation sheets, please contact:

Mr S. Kenyon, Interim Executive Director of Resources & Regulation, 
Tel. 0161 253 6922, E-mail: S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk,

9

Document Pack Page 39

mailto:S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk


Appendix 1: Prudential and Treasury Indicators
2016/17 2017/18 2017/18

Actual Estimate Actual1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
£'000 £'000 £'000

    
Capital Expenditure   
    Non - HRA 16,321 27,779 20,100
    HRA 16,176 8,772 7,371
    TOTAL 32,497 36,551 27,471
   
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream   
    Non - HRA 3.10% 3.01% 2.96%
    HRA 14.47% 14.47% 14.15%
   
Gross borrowing requirement   
    Alternative financing 1,699 0 1,357
    Replacement Borrowing 5,353 3,166 1,172
    in year borrowing requirement 3,654 3,166 -185
   
Gross debt 195,682 194,510
   
CFR   
    Non – HRA 126,936 123,875 128,293
    HRA 118,784 118,784 118,784
    TOTAL 245,720 242,660 247,077
   
Annual change in Cap. Financing Requirement   
    Non – HRA 3,208 1,357
    HRA 0 0
    TOTAL 3,208  1,357
   
Incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions   
    Increase in council tax (band D) per annum  -£5.15 -£1.02 -£3.45
    Increase in average housing rent per week £0 £0 £0
    

2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  INDICATORS 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18
10

Document Pack Page 40



Actual Estimate Actual
£'000 £'000 £'000

    
Authorised Limit for external debt -   
    borrowing 245,700 242,700 240,100
    other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000
     TOTAL 250,700 247,700 245,100
   
Operational Boundary for external debt -   
     borrowing 280,700 277,700 275,100
     other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000
     TOTAL 285,700 282,700 280,100
   
Actual external debt 195,682 194,510 
   
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure   
     Net principal re fixed rate borrowing / investments 110% 113% 112%
   
Upper limit for variable rate exposure   
     Net principal re variable rate borrowing / investments -10% -13% -12%
   
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for 
over 364 days £10 m £10 m £10 m
     (per maturity date)   
    

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

under 12 months 2% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 8% 5%
24 months and within 5 years 8% 5%
5 years and within 10 years 2% 0%
10 years and within 15 years 13% 13%
15 years and within 50 years 67% 67%

11

Document Pack Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: CABINET
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 27th June 2018
10th July 2018

SUBJECT: CAPITAL OUTTURN 2017/18

REPORT FROM: CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND HOUSING 

CONTACT OFFICER: STEVE KENYON, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
OF RESOURCES AND REGULATION 

TYPE OF DECISION: CABINET (KEY DECISION)

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is within the public domain 

SUMMARY: PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 

This report provides Members with details of:
 

 The capital outturn figures in respect of the last 
financial year 2017/18;

 Major variances between the Revised Estimate 
and the Outturn;

 The financing of the Capital Programme in 
2017/18;

 Re-profile of budgets/allocations and slippage of 
funding into 2018/19;  

 Details of the capital receipts realised during the 
year.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Members are asked to:
a)     Note the final capital outturn for 2017/2018, and    
        explanations for major variances (Appendix A and   
        report)
b)     Note the financing of the Capital Programme in  
        2017/18 (Paragraph 3.5)
c)     Consider and recommend for approval the re- 
         profiled/slippage requests and associated funding  
         into 2018/2019 (Appendix B)
d)    Note the level of Capital Receipts realised in year    

and proposed use of the sites disposed of during 
1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION
Agenda
Item

Document Pack Page 43 Agenda Item 7



the year (Appendix C).

 Recommended Option:
 
 To approve the recommendations set out above.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

The successful management of capital 
investment in the Borough supports the 
delivery of all of the Council’s Aims and 
Objectives.

Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations (Statement by 
s151 Officer):

Capital expenditure has been incurred in 
accordance with the agreed Capital 
Programme. This links the expenditure with 
the objectives of the Council and the Capital 
Strategy.  The Programme has been financed 
in a way that optimises to the maximum the 
resources available, including the prudent 
use of capital receipts.  

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources:

See statement by s151 officer above. The 
capital receipts used to fund the Programme 
were made available through disposal of 
assets in accordance with the policies 
specified in the Asset Management Plan.

Equality/Diversity implications: No (see paragraph 8.1, page 8)

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes. The presentation of an annual report 
on the Capital Outturn is a requirement of 
the Council’s Financial Regulations, as part of 
the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules. The 
report accords with the Council’s Policy and 
Budget Framework and has been prepared in 
accordance with all Statutory Guidance and 
Codes of Practice.

Are there any legal implications? Yes

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview & Scrutiny Committee

TRACKING/PROCESS INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:  STEVE KENYON

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Cabinet
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Yes 27/6/18

2

Document Pack Page 44



Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Council

4/7/18 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Capital Programme is an integral part of the Council’s financial planning 
and represents expenditure on schemes or assets where the Council or an 
approved third party will derive a long term benefit, over more than one year. 

1.2 The funding for the Capital Programme comes from a variety of sources that 
include borrowing, capital grants, external contributions, revenue contributions, 
reserves and capital receipts. Capital receipts are received through the disposal 
of the Council’s assets and are detailed later in the report. Operating within 
statutory rules, the financing of the Programme seeks to optimise the funding 
resources available.

1.3    Since the introduction of the Prudential Code in 2004 the Council is required to 
finance and account for the capital expenditure on an accruals basis. The 
significance of this is that all capital expenditure incurred within the financial 
year is financed at year end, including any outstanding capital creditors and 
debtors that are accounted for within final figures. These are subsequently 
reconciled with the actual amounts that are paid out or received in the 
following financial year.  

1.4 Accruals are also shown at the end of the financial year for grant funding to be 
claimed that support schemes started during the year and are dependant on 
externally provided funds.

1.5 The indications for supported capital allocations from the government are now 
made on a two to three year basis with firm indications for amounts allocated 
for each Authority being supplied for the following year. This means that the 
certainty of finances for schemes extending over one year is now greater and 
managers can plan, although risk aware, for longer term schemes. There is still 
only a limited number of capital grants that can be carried forward to fund 
schemes that have slipped between financial years.  

1.6 The report also provides details of the major variances between the revised           
budget estimate and the outturn and gives explanations for these variances.

1.7 The following three appendices are attached to the report to provide Members 
with additional detail and support the recommendations made:

 Appendix A shows a summary of the Capital Programme expenditure 
realised in the year against the Revised Estimate for each Department and 
project.  

3

Document Pack Page 45



 Appendix B lists capital projects that have not completed by end of the 
financial year and are re-profiled or slipped into 2018/19 and future years, 
analysed by Department and category of funding source. 

 Appendix C shows a summary of asset disposals that occurred in the year 
and the realised usable part of the receipt that was either expended in the 
year to support the funding of the programme, set aside for future capital 
investment or set aside for repayment of borrowing.

2.0 CAPITAL OUTTURN 2017/2018

2.1 Approved Capital Budget and Outturn

2.2 The total Capital Budget approved by Council on 22 February 2017 with  
subsequent movements during the financial year 2017/18 and the final 
expenditure at outturn are shown in the table below:

Capital Budget 2017/18 £m £m

Original approved budget 20.281

Value of schemes re-profiled from 
2016/17 programme

28.253

Amendments to budget in year 7.335 35.588

Revised programme for 2017/18
55.869

Value of schemes re-profiled to 
2018/19 (28.398)

Final Capital Programme 2017/18 27.471

Capital Outturn for 2017/18 27.471

Variance 0.000

2.3 Members are reminded, for completeness and not included in the figures 
above, that Voluntary Aided schools in Bury receive the Capital Grant 
allocations from the Department for Education.  The allocations are awarded 
directly to the schools and the expenditure funded by these amounts was 
accounted for by the Voluntary Aided schools’ governors and not by the 
Council.  In 2017/18 this grant totalled £1.333million. 

2.4 Capital expenditure that was achieved from schemes carried out during the 
year totalled £27.471million against the final approved Programme funding 
(excluding the amounts for the VA schools and the re-profiled amounts) of 
£27.471million. There was an overall positive variance at the end of the year 
of less than £0.001million mainly from allocations for costs associated to 
retentions and defects to completed projects not charged to the programme.  

4

Document Pack Page 46



2.5 These costs will not affect the financing of the programme or resources 
available due to the minimal value involved.

3.0 CAPITAL PROGRAMME FUNDING

3.1 The Capital Programme is funded from a variety of funding sources as specified 
in paragraph 1.2. The methodology used for the financing the Capital 
Programme is particularly important and the emphasis is placed on the 
optimisation of resources available.

3.2 The objective is to arrive at the best possible financial position for the Council 
at the end of the financial year and one that will have minimal effect on the 
Council’s future financial position.

3.3 This is achieved through maximising the use of government funded allocations, 
capital grants and external contributions. The Capital Programme also relies on 
and uses contributions from capital receipts, reserves and the revenue budget.

3.4 The introduction of the Prudential regime as explained at paragraph 1.3 
requires the Authority to finance its capital expenditure on an accruals basis.  
In 2017/18 the amount financed after accruing for all payments made or to be 
made for contract work, goods and services supplied by 31st March 2018 was 
£27.471million.

3.5 The financing of expenditure carried out during the year and reported inclusive
of all accruals for the year for both expenditure and income is detailed below:

Expenditure: £m £m
Fixed assets 26.980
Intangible assets 0.466
Vehicle, Plant and Equipment 25
Total 27.471

Financed by:
Loan (HRA) 5.133
Capital Receipts 3.035
Earmarked Reserve 0.649
External Grants and Contributions 10.766
General Fund Revenue and Reserves 0.498
Housing Revenue Account 0.445
Major Repair Allowance 6.945
Total 27.471

3.6 As a result of statutory controls over council finances the Council’s ability to 
determine the level of its Capital Programme is limited to the level of 
contributions it can make to the Capital Programme from revenue and reserves 
and the level of unsupported borrowing that it can service in financing costs.

5

Document Pack Page 47



3.7 The alternative way for the Council to fund new capital projects is by way of 
replacing older assets with new ones through disposal of the surplus properties 
held in within Council’s asset register. The availability of proceeds from the 
disposal is linked to market conditions that attach an element of risk to the 
final level of this type of income available each year. 

3.8 In 2017/18 the Council financed schemes to a total value of £3.035million 
from total available capital receipts including those brought forward from 
previous year. 

3.9 The Council has realised capital receipts from the sale of assets in 2017/18 of 
£5.402million in total, of which £3.871million can be used towards future 
capital investment or repayment of debt. The balance represents the payment 
of the share from the Right to Buys sales of £1.532million to Government. 

3.10 The balance of general usable capital receipts at year end will be carried 
forward into 2018/2019 to ensure an amount for earmarked capital receipts 
that have been approved and required for committed and specific projects.

3.11 Effective financing implies the use of cash available in the year instead of the 
use of unsupported borrowing that would attract higher financing costs. This 
was applied to some schemes that have slipped into 2017/18 and that 
originally had approved funding from Council’s resources. 

3.12 Accordingly, the borrowing requirement is delayed until it becomes absolutely 
necessary. This also ensures that a sound cash flow for the Council is 
maintained at all times.

4.0 CAPITAL PROJECTS  RE-PROFILED TO FUTURE YEARS AND SLIPPAGE 
OF FUNDING

4.1 Explanations were given earlier in the report to the specific nature of the 
Capital Programme that demands budget allocations in every financial year to 
be continuously modified as the schemes develop. This ultimately means that 
the capital budget changes significantly from the original approved to final 
figure.

4.2 A direct result of the continuous change to the budget through the year is the 
difficulty in timing the delivery of capital schemes to the funding that is used in 
the budgeting process. The process accepts that capital spend is not 
necessarily completed within the financial year in which the scheme is 
approved. Explanations for the reasons are given in the table shown in 
Appendix B. 

4.3 The majority of re-profiled schemes are the major projects for which approvals 
were given towards a longer term delivery. The report seeking approval to the 
Council Annual Budget meeting specified that these will be delivered over 
several years and the detailed design, planning and cost estimates require a 
considerable amount of time before they are fully quantified.

4.4 The total amount that was re-profiled to the next and future years was 
£28.398million, as reported above in the table at paragraph 2.2 and the 
details of projects are shown in Appendix B.

6

Document Pack Page 48



4.5 The table below shows the different elements of funding approved by full 
Council in February 2017 for the 2017/18 financial year that was not spent in 
the year. These amounts were part of the three year rolling capital programme, 
from 2016/17 to 2018/19 compiled and presented to Council by Operational 
services of the Authority. 

2017/18 Capital schemes  re-profiled into
2018/19

£m £m

Total re-profiled 28.398

Financed by:

Capital grants and contributions held in 
reserves

   12.237

MRA Reserve 905

Capital receipts / Earmarked reserves 2.285

Loan 8.675

Capital grants and contributions receivable 
2018/19

4.256

General Fund Revenue / reserves 0.040

Total 28.398

4.6 The value of the schemes re-profiled into 2018/19 will be financed in the next 
and future years from balances carried forward as usable reserves on the 
Balance Sheet. As at 31st March £3.726m of the total shown above was not 
received from external resources / partners due to own cash profiling and 
£0.530m was held in general usable reserves.

4.7 A small amount of the grants and contributions carried forward, of £0.372m, 
was conditionally received to schemes being completed by a certain date or 
scope. The Council will ensure that all conditions to finance the agreed capital 
projects are complied with.

4.8 The amount shown as loan of £8.675m represents previous years’ together 
with new approvals made by the Council for Invest to Save projects and 
affordable housing schemes that are long term  and  will require several years 
to complete, listed as:

 Housing care schemes and empty properties
 Street Lighting LED Invest to Save commitment
 Prestwich Village remodelling
 Highways maintenance and improvement schemes (2017 to 2020) 

4.9 There should be no further impact on Council’s own resources as a result of this 
and all funding has been allowed for within the existing cost of borrowing.

7

Document Pack Page 49



4.10 The unused allocation from the Housing Revenue Account Reserve for council 
house repairs is transferred at year end to a reserve account and available to 
finance re-profiling of schemes into the 2018/19 capital expenditure.  

4.11 The Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing will be requested to note and 
recommend for approval the carry forward of schemes and associated funding 
into 2018/19. 

4.12 The Capital Programme approved by Council in February 2018 for the 2018/19 
financial year will be updated with the slippage of funding as recommended and 
approved by Cabinet.  

5.0 MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS

5.1   The Council’s Capital Programme depends on available and acquired resources 
that are more than often generated from a wide variety of sources and are 
difficult to estimate long in advance.

5.2 The planning, approval, spend during the year, and outturn strongly indicate 
the need for regular monitoring and for flexibility during the year in order to 
achieve the capital investment objectives as set down in the Capital Strategy. 

5.3 At the same time an important objective is to maximise the capital resources 
available to the Council that support the programme and after that to ensure 
that the available funds are used in the most effective way.  

5.4 In order that issues connected to the preparation and the delivery of the 
programme are identified at an early stage there is a senior officer level Capital 
Programme Management Group that meets on a monthly basis. Monitoring 
reports on the Capital Programme position are also included in the quarterly 
corporate financial management reports considered by the Strategic Leadership 
Team, the Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Housing, Cabinet and subsequently scrutinised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

5.5 The Capital investment requirement for the Council is considered and approved 
over a three year rolling programme, with a longer term view for projects that 
go beyond this period of time. 

6.0 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 The successful delivery of the capital programme and the financing or funding 
of expenditure realised in the year bears several risks that have been 
identified:

6.2 Projected outturns throughout the year are based on the best knowledge of the 
Project Managers at the end of each quarter. There is a tendency for scheme 
estimates to change and sometimes significantly from one report to the next, 
as planning and works on the projects progresses.  Regular budget monitoring 
and reporting through the Capital Programme Management Group provide the 
updates for the forecast and enable analysis of these changes by the officers in 
charge. 

8

Document Pack Page 50



6.3 If corrective action needs to be taken this is normally done in a timely manner 
to ensure the flow of the programme for the year and minimise the impact on 
the financial resources available.

6.4 The management techniques applied include the traffic light process which is 
used to assess budgets in terms of forecast over and under spending and 
secondly the identification of ‘hot spots’ based on risk factors that are inherent 
in individual budget areas. Reports containing this information have been 
provided on a regular basis to Strategic Leadership Team, Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet, Audit Committee and Star Chambers. 

6.5 It is envisaged that this style of reporting will be continued into the next and 
future financial years. 

6.6 The availability of funding required to support the programme is partly 
controlled by external providers and there is always a risk that the finances 
required for the year are either not realised or timing issues arise. These 
instances are outside Council’s control and could put the completion of certain 
projects at risk.  

6.7 One of the significant sources of funding for the capital programme are capital 
receipts realised and these have reduced in recent years in size and numbers.  
This has, to an extent, had a negative effect on the mix and size of the capital 
projects that have been approved by Council. 

6.8 The Council has taken steps to mitigate this downside effect on the programme 
by streamlining the number of projects approved at the beginning of the year 
in favour of additional approvals being considered only as resources become 
available. 

6.9 Capital expenditure reliant on capital receipts is only approved and takes place 
when the receipt is actually realised.

7.0 REVIEW OF COMPLETED SCHEMES

7.1 For all schemes where Council approved funding in excess of £0.250million a 
Completion Review Form is completed by Project Managers. This ensures that 
the monitoring process for larger schemes can be extended to evaluate, 
highlight and assess outcomes directly in line with the Council’s aims and 
objectives. Explanations for variances are also included. 

7.2 The Summary of Accounts which is published after the statement of accounts 
are audited and approved will show in £’000 and percentages the contribution 
made by the Capital Programme in the year towards Council’s priorities, aims 
and objectives.

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 

8.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications.  

9.0 FUTURE ACTIONS

9.1 See Section 5 of this report for details of the continuation of the monitoring 
arrangements.

9

Document Pack Page 51



Councillor Eamon O’Brien
Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing

Background documents:

Capital Cost Tab and Financing Working Papers, 2017/2018
Council Approved Capital Programme 2017/18, Report and Appendix1

For further information on the details of this report, please contact:

Mr S. Kenyon, Interim Executive Director of Resources & Regulation 
Tel. 0161 253 6922    
E-mail: S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk

10

Document Pack Page 52

mailto:S.kenyon@bury.gov.uk


BURY COUNCIL CAPITAL PROGRAMME APPENDIX  A 

formulae formulae

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

 Original Budget Revised Budget
Reprofiled to 

Future Years                              

Slippage to 

Future Years 

Revised 

Estimate After 
Outturn

Month 12 

variance (Under) 
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Support Services 74 -                          74 74 0 

Devolved Formula Capital                      500                   1,184 (738) 446 446 0 

New Deal for Schools Modernisation 1,637                  12,480 (8,848) 3,632 3,632 0 

Access Initiative 8 (6) 2 2 (0)

Targetted Capital Funds 76 76 152 153 0 

Free School Meal Capital Grant 22 (22)                      (0) 0 

Early Education Fund 222 (140) 82 81 (0)

Protecting Play Fields 20 (10) 10 10 0 

Totals 2,137 14,086 66 (9,754) 4,398 4,399 1 

Environmental Works 85 (85) 0 0 

Environmental Nuisance Measures 100 100 (46) 54 54 0 

Parks 102 (60) 42 42 0 

Leisure Services - Play Areas 42 42 42 0 

Leisure Services - Demolition of Radcliffe Pool 44 (31) 13 13 0 

Adult Care - Learning Disabilities 9 9 9 0 

Adult Care - Improving Informantion Management 87 (80) 7 7 (0)

Adult Care - Older People 2,609 2,609 2,608 (1)

Social Care Single Capital Pot 455 19 (19) 0 0 

Urban Renewal - Empty Property Strategy 753 (405)                    348 348 0 

Urban Renewal - Housing development 11,362 (5,719) 5,644 5,644 0 

Urban Renewal - Disabled Facilities Grant 968 1,285 (700) 585 585 0 

Waste Management 53 (27) 25 25 0 

Totals 1,523 16,550 (5,750) (1,422) 9,378 9,377 (1)

Flood Repair & Defence 2,668 (1,392) 1,277 1,277 (0)

Street Lighting LED Invest to Save 1,046 1,000 (251) 749 749 0 

Traffic Management Schemes 406 (360) 47 47 0 

Highways Maintenance 1,110 1,660 (60) (584) 1,016 1,016 (0)

Principal Roads (A Roads) 3,000 3,000 (3,000) 0 0 

Unclassified Local Roads 933 1,647 (859) 788 788 0 

Non Principal Road Network/Other Classified (B&C Roads) 279 412 (92) 320 320 (0)

Policy 13 (9) 4 4 0 

Bridges 320 (119) 202 202 0 

Prestwich Town Centre 1,771 (1,020) 750 750 0 

Traffic Calming and Improvement 188 531 (497) 33 33 0 

Planning - Development Schemes 28 (11) 16 16 0 

Planning - Environmental Schemes 4 550 (240) (64)                      246 246 0 

Corporate ICT Projects                        71                      870 (345) 525 525 0 

Corporate Property Initiatives                      282 (51) 231 231 (0)

Property - Sales 118 118 118 0 

Totals 6,631 15,276 (3,797) (5,155) 6,324 6,324 (0)

Housing Public 

Sector
Housing programme Major works (HRA funded) 9,991                   9,957 (1,681) (905) 7,371 7,371 0 

Totals 9,991 9,957 (1,681) (905) 7,371 7,371 0 

Total Bury Council controlled programme 20,281 55,869 (11,162) (17,236) 27,471 27,471 (0)

Funding position:

Capital Receipts 100 1,962 (260) (1,702) 0 3,035 -3,035

Capital Reserves / Earmarked Capital Receipts 71 1,502 (270) (583)                    649 649 0

General Fund Revenue/Reserves 0 543 (5) (40)                      498 498 0

Housing Revenue Account
9,991 9,976 (1,681)                 (905)                    7,390 7,390 0

Capital Grants/Contributions 5,733 25,043 (2,040) (12,237) 10,766 10,766 0

HRA/MRA Schemes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Supported Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unsupported Borrowing 4,386 16,843 (6,906) (1,769) 8,168 5,133 3,035

20,281 55,869 (11,162) (17,236) 27,471 27,471

Key for budget monitoring reports

Projected Overspend (or Income Shortfall) of

a major problem with the budget more than 10% and above £50,000

a significant problem with the budget more than 10% but less than £50,000

expenditure/income in line with budget

a significant projected underspend (or income surplus) more than 10% but under £50,000

a major projected underspend (or income surplus) more than 10% and above £50,000

Corporate Monitoring Statement 

Resources & 

Regulation

Communities & 

Wellbeing

Children, 

Young People 

& Culture

Document Pack Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Expenditure: £000’s £000’s

Fixed assets 26,980

Intangible assets 466

Vehicle, Plant and Equipment 25

Total 27,471

Financed by: £000’s £000’s

Loan (HRA) 5,133

Capital Receipts 3,035

Grants & Contributions 11,415

General Fund Revenue and 

Reserves
498

Housing Revenue Account 445

Major Repair Allowance 6,945

Total 27,471

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18                Appendix B

PROGRAMME SLIPPAGE/RE-PROFILE REQUEST 2017/18 TO 2018/19    

SERVIC
E SCHEME £000's FUNDING 

SOURCE COMMENTS

Devolved Formula 738 Grant Three year rolling programme.

New Deal for Schools 
Modernisation 8,848

Grant/
School 
Contributio
n

Required for 2018/19

Schools Access Initiative 6 Supported 
Borrowing Required for 2018/19

Targeted Capital Funding 
New Millwood (76) Grant Retentions

Free School Meal Grant 22 Grant Required for 2018/19

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
, 

Y
ou

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
re

Early Education Fund 140 Grant Spend commenced 2017/18 

Play Field Improvement - 
Lowercroft 10 External 

Funding
Required in 18/19 – Scheme to 
complete 2018

TOTAL Children, Young People 
& Culture 9,688

Environmental Works 131 Grant 1) Ring fenced grant.  Schemes 
to continue in 2018/19

Parks 60 Reserves Projects to complete in 2018-19

Demolition of Radcliffe Pool 31 Reserves Related spend in 2018/19

IT 80 Grant

Older People 19 Grant Funding required for continuing 
refurbishment works at Killelea.

Empty Homes Strategy 6
312

LA Funding     
S106

s106 funding for remaining 
acquisitions 

Urban Renewal – Housing 
Development 5,806 Various Continuing Extra Care Scheme -

agreed near end of 2016/17

Disabled Facilities Grant 700 Grant
Request to slip remaining budget 
due to commitment already in 
the system.D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
C

om
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
&

 
W

el
lb

ei
n

g

Waste Management 27 Grant
Required to purchase new bins 
as part of waste review

TOTAL Communities & 
Wellbeing 7,172

1

Document Pack Page 57



SERVICE SCHEME £000's FUNDING 
SOURCE COMMENTS

Flood Repair & Damage 1,392 Grant Works to continue

Street Lighting 210
40

Grant
LA Funding Ongoing scheme

Traffic Management 
Schemes 271 Capital 

Receipt

Potholes prioritised over 
maintenance schemes – to 
continue

Public Rights of Way 89 Grant Ongoing development

Highways Planned 
Network Maintenance 4594 Grant Numerous schemes to 

complete works 2017/18

Policy 9 Grant

Bridges 119 Grant To complete works in 2017/18

A56 Prestwich Village 
Corridor Improvements

1,000
20

LA Funding
Grant

Scheme continues into 
2018/19

Other Traffic 
Improvement Schemes 497 Grant Includes cycleways

Planning /  Development 
Group

75
240

LA Funding
Grant

Contribution to future works 
with Forestry Commission - no 
decision made yet

Corporate - ICT 345 LA Funding
Slippage req'd for Ph.2 
consultancy work in 2018/19 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

n
d

 R
eg

u
la

ti
on

Corporate Property 
Initiatives 51

Property 
Fund / LA 
Funding

On going projects

TOTAL
Resources & 
Regulation 8,952

 H
R

A

Major Repairs 2,586
HRA funding 
/ MRA  
reserve

Schemes committed in 
2018/19

TOTAL Housing Public Sector 2,586

TOTAL TOTAL SLIPPAGE / 
RE-PROFILED VALUE

   28,398

2

Document Pack Page 58



                                   CAPITAL RECEIPTS 2017/2018                        APPENDIX C

GROSS RECEIPT
£

       USABLE RECEIPT
£

Housing Receipts
Balance Brought Forward from 
2016/17 0 0
Council House Sales (Right to 
Buy) 2017/18 3,119,443 1,587,698

Other Housing Receipts 0 0

Total Housing Receipts 3,119,443 1,587,698

General Asset Receipts
Balance Brought Forward from 
2016/17 4,205,240 4,205,240

General asset sales 2017/18 2,282,890 2,282,890

Total General Receipts 6,488,130 6,488,130

Total Capital Receipts for 2017/18 9,607,573 8,075,828

General Receipts detail: Ward Area 
(m2)

Proposed Use

11 (adj.to 13) Pine Street South EAST 84.7 Residential Development

17 & 19 Parsons Lane EAST 80.5 + 
82.2

Retail/Residential 
Development

181 Parr Lane BESSES 299.9 Existing Residential

Knowles Street Colony RADCLIFFE EAST 112.3 Possible Development

Land adj Chapel Road, Prestwich ST MARYS 716.5 Residential Development

Land at Chamberhall Business Park MOORSIDE 3195.1 Commercial Development

Land at Dale Street, Radcliffe RADCLIFFE EAST 7824.4 Commercial/Retail  
Development

Land at Factory Street, Ramsbottom RAMSBOTTOM 300.8 Access

Land at Walmersley Rd MOORSIDE 884.3 Residential Development

Land at Whitefield House (Dev.Agreement) PILKINGTON 
PARK 308.7 Commercial Development

Land between 701 and 703 Whitefield Rd REDVALES 322.8 Possible Development

Land rear of 44 Linksway Drive, Bury UNSWORTH 106.9 Garden Extension

Land rear of 48 Linksway Drive, Bury UNSWORTH 145.4 Garden Extension

Land rear of 50 Linksway Drive, Bury UNSWORTH 105.8 Garden Extension

Land rear of 52 Linksway Drive, Bury UNSWORTH 112.7 Garden Extension

Land rear of White Boar Hotel REDVALES Residential Development

Sale of Land at Bealey Avenue, Radcliffe RADCLIFFE EAST 314.0 Possible Development

Howarth Close LD Day Centre REDVALES 7647.4 Residential Development

Freehold reversion Sales Existing Residential

1

Document Pack Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 10 JULY 2018

SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT OF A WORK PROGRAMME FOR 
2018/2019

REPORT FROM: ANDREA TOMLINSON, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER

CONTACT OFFICER: 

1.0 SUMMARY

This report sets out details the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
along with a Work Programme Prioritisation Protocol to assist in the 
development of a Work Programme for 2018/2019.

2.0 MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION/DECISION

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are requested to:

Agree and set an Annual Work Programme for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year, 
in accordance with Committee’s remit, previous work and the Work Programme 
and Prioritisation Protocol. 

3.0 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

3.1 Terms of reference

 To review and scrutinise the decisions made or actions taken in 
connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions.

 To review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its 
policy objectives, performance targets and all particular service areas.

 To set up, appoint and monitor Scrutiny Panels (set up to carry out 
reviews of policies, services or the impact of decisions).

 To make recommendations to the Cabinet and/or appropriate Committee 
and/or Council arising from the outcome of the Scrutiny process.

 To review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in 
connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their 
crime and disorder functions.

1

Agenda
Item

Scrutiny Report

Document Pack Page 61 Agenda Item 8



 Oversight of the provision, planning and management of the Council’s 
resources including its budget, revenue borrowing assets and audit 
arrangements.

 Oversight of the Council’s corporate plans and strategies and the 
monitoring of the corporate plan and departmental plans.

 To scrutinise outside bodies and partners relevant to the Council.

 To receive all reports from external inspectors.

3.2 Scrutiny Structure

The current scrutiny structure was adopted by Full Council on 28 March 2012, 
based on the findings of a review carried out by the Overview Management 
Committee. The structure makes provision for the setting up of time-limited 
task and finish Scrutiny Panels to carry out detailed work into specific topics. 
These Panels will be set up and monitored by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, with membership drawn from all backbench Councillors. The 
diagram below sets out the current scrutiny structure.

* Overview Project Group

2

Council

Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Cabinet

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee

OPG *
Task & 
Finish

OPG
Task & 
Finish

OPG
Task & 
Finish

Call In

Document Pack Page 62



4.0 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019

4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required to set a work programme for 
2018/2019.

4.2    A well thought out and effective Work Programme will allow work to be time-
tabled to ensure completion and help determine when and what resources may 
be needed. 

4.3   Within the Programme it is important to ensure that there is the capacity to 
provide an urgent response to issues that arise during the year and need to be 
dealt with at short notice. Scrutiny of Key Executive decisions will form a large 
element of the Committee’s work during the year and it is important that 
flexibility is built into the Work Programme to allow for this to take place.

4.4 To assist in the development of an outcome focussed, measureable, realistic 
and timely Work Programme, a Prioritisation Protocol is set out below. The 
Protocol sets out some initial questions to be asked of proposed topics and 
includes further questions and filters to help achieve a prioritised and 
deliverable work programme. 

4.0 SUGGESTED ITEMS ARISING FROM LAST YEAR 

During last year’s work, the Committee’s work programme included the 
following items:

Corporate Financial Monitoring Reports
Performance Progress Reports
Treasury Management Reports
Highways Maintenance 
Children’s Safeguarding (OPG)*
Call in of Libraries Decision
Street Cleaning & Fly Tipping
Managing Parks and open Spaces
Air Quality
Update on Devolution

*Carried over from previous years’ work programme.

Some of the above, particularly the financial and performance reporting 
mechanisms, will form part of this coming year’s programme as a matter of 
course. The above list does not represent all the issues looked at during the 
year as consideration was also given to the issues of Council owned car parks 
Ombudsman complaints regarding the Council and Children’s Services 
complaints.
  

5.0 CONCLUSION 

The information contained in this report provides an outline of the terms of 
reference for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee along with a Work 
Programme Prioritisation Protocol to assist in setting an outcome based, 
focussed, balanced and deliverable work programme based on the priorities of 
Bury Council and its residents. 

3

Document Pack Page 63



CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer:       Andrea Tomlinson, Democratic Services
Telephone number: 0161 253 5133
 E-mail address:       a.j.tomlinson@bury.gov.uk

4

Document Pack Page 64



 Date:                       17 May 2018

  

           Appendix 1

Prioritising Topics for Scrutiny 

When deciding which items to include on the Scrutiny Work Programmes it can 
sometimes become confusing and difficult to identify the topics which are most 
important or worthy of scrutiny.

Section 1 - At the outset

When topics have been identified as possible Scrutiny Work Programme items, 
Members and their support Officers should ask the following of each topic 
identified;

 Does the issue have a potential impact for one or more sections of 
the population? Yes – Leave on Work Programme

 Is the issue strategic and significant?  Yes – Leave on Work Programme
 Is there a clear objective for scrutinising this topic? Can objective be 

identified – Yes leave on Work Programme
 Is there evidence to support the need for scrutiny? Yes – Leave on 

Work Programme 
 What are the likely benefits to the Council and its customers? What 

do we hope to achieve? If identifiable – Leave on Work Programme
 Are you likely to achieve a desired outcome? Can benefits to Council 

and customers be achieved?
 What are the potential risks? 
 Are there adequate resources available to do the activity well?
 Is the Scrutiny activity timely? Yes – Leave on Work Programme 

Section 2 – Criteria to Reject

Once the questions above have been answered and the topics are still included 
on the Work Programme, Members should move onto the following rejection 
filters:-

Reject if;

 The issue is being examined elsewhere e.g. officer group, other Councillor 
group.

 Issue was reviewed less than 2 years ago
 New legislation or guidance expected within the year
 No scope for scrutiny to add value/make a difference
 The objective cannot be achieved in the specified timescale
 Changes are currently being /have recently been implemented

5

Document Pack Page 65



Section 3 – Prioritisation of Topics

The following questions should be asked when looking to prioritise potential 
work programme items.

Public interest

 Has the issue been identified by Members through surgeries and other 
contact with constituents?(on how many occasions – more occasions 
warrants a higher score).

 Has a user dissatisfaction with the service been identified? (complaints).
 Topic identified through Market Surveys/Citizens Panel.
 Has the issue been covered in the local media?

Internal Council priority

 Council Priority area?
 There is a high level of budgetary commitment to the service/policy area (as 

percentage of total expenditure)
 There has been a pattern of budgetary overspends
 The service is a poor performer (evidence from performance 

indicators/benchmarking).

External Factors

 Central Government priority area
 Issues raised by External Audit Management Letter/External Audit Reports.
 Key reports or new evidence provided by external organisations on key 

issue.

6

Document Pack Page 66



Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Forward Plan 2017/2018

Date of meeting Date of 
agenda issue

Item Officer/Member 
attending

10 July 2017 2 July 20118 Revenue & Housing Revenue Account Outturn 2017/2018

Treasury Management Outturn 2017/2018

Capital Outturn 2017/2018

Work Programme 2018/2019

Steve Kenyon

Steve Kenyon

Steve Kenyon

Andrea Tomlinson
11 September 
2018

3 September 
2018

Corporate Performance reports

Devolution/Combined Authority update

Cllr Shori/Chris Woodhouse

Cllr Shori/Chris Woodhouse

22 November 
2018

14 November 
2018

Education Performance

Annual Complaints Report – Adult Social Care

Cllr Briggs/Karen Dolton

Cllr Simpson/Julie Gonda
21 January 2019 11 January 

2019
Financial Management

Children’s Safeguarding OPG update

Steve Kenyon

Councillor Susan 
Southworth

13 February 2019 5 February 
2019

Budget reports Steve Kenyon

4 April 2019 27 March 2019 Corporate Performance reports

Devolution/Combined Authority update

Cllr Shori/Chris Woodhouse

Cllr Shori/Chris Woodhouse

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Last Meeting
	5 Revenue and Housing Revenue Account Outturn Report 2017/2018
	6 Treasury Management Annual Report
	7 Capital Outturn Report 2017-18, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	Copy of Appendix A - Capital Outturn Report 2017-18 final, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	Copy of Appendix A - Capital Outturn Report 2017-18 final (3), 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix B - Reprofiled Schemes 2017-18 to 2018-19, 27/06/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix C - Ward Area Use 2017-18, 27/06/2018 Cabinet

	8 DEVELOPMENT OF A WORK PROGRAMME
	Overview and Scrutiny Committee forward plan  2018 - 2019


